
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA            

December 2, 2008 
 
6:30 PM    Public Hearing Vacating Circle Street. 

Work Study Caucus Session Discussion 
Pending agenda items, public discussion 
 
Business Meeting 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
Electronic Attendance  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by one motion. 

No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member requests the item to be removed 

from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on 

the agenda for this meeting.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will ask 

if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion. 

 
Minutes of the Special meeting November 14, 2008; Regular meeting November 18, 2008 
 
Police Department for the month of October, 2008 
 
Payroll and Bills for the last half of November, 2008. 
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the Council. The 

Illinois Open Meetings Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action on comments received on 

matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council may direct staff to address the topic or 

refer the matter for action on the agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested 

to limit their presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious comments. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Motion –Approve Council Decision Request 2008-917: Authorizing the purchase of two 2008 Ford Crown 

Victoria Police Interceptor patrol cars from Landmark Ford at the State joint purchase price 
of $20,697.00 each. (Cline) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2008-918: Authorizing the purchase of two destratifiers for 

Lake Paradise in the amount of $70,800 from E.C. Baker & Sons of Neoga. (Hall) 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2008-919: Awarding bid from Laster Custom Underground 

of Mattoon in the amount of $20,749.40 for the 2417 Lake Land Blvd sanitary sewer extension 
project, and authorizing the Mayor to sign the contract. (Hall) 

 
Motion –Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1305: Authorizing a contract with PersonalCare for the 

Administration of the self-insured health plan and Delta Dental of Illinois for the 



Administration of the self-insured dental plan for employees and retirees of the municipality; 
and accepting The Checkley Agency as broker. (Schilling) 

 
Motion -Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1306: Approving the vacation of a portion of Circle Street located 

south of Charleston Avenue and north of Wabash Avenue.  Ken Diepholz – Petitioner 
(McKenzie) 

 
Motion -Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1307: Approving the vacation of portions of Edgar Avenue 

located west of 21st Street and 22nd Street and north of Edgar Avenue.  AJ Walker – Petitioner 
(McKenzie) 

 
Motion - Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1308: Approving the vacation a portion of Circle Street located 

south of Wabash Avenue and north of Lafayette Avenue. Bill Standerfer – Petitioner 
(McKenzie) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1309: Authorizing the sale of surplus real estate owned by the 

municipality to Steven E. and Margaret I. Lawhorn. (Hall) 
 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2008-2760: Authorizing a $20,000 maximum agreement with the Coles 

County Regional Planning & Development Commission for Technical Assistance for services to 
be rendered from December 1, 2008 to November 30, 2009 on a time and expense basis. (Cline)   

 
Motion –Adopt Resolution 2008-2761: Authorizing a $2,100.00 agreement with the Coles County 

Regional Planning & Development Commission for administration of the Mattoon Revolving 
Loan Fund for services to be rendered from December 1, 2008 to November 30, 2009 on a time 
and expense basis. (Cline)  

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2008-1310: Approving the Redevelopment Agreement for Hooks-

Supr RX LLC (CVS Pharmacy); and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
documents. (Cline) 

 
Adjourn. 



  

UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 

November 14, 2008 (Special) 
 The special meeting of the City Council was held in the City Hall Council Chambers, on 
November 14, 2008 at 4:00 p.m.  
 
 Mayor Cline led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present:  YEA 
Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Joe McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner David Schilling, YEA Mayor David Cline.  
 
 Also physically present were City personnel:  City Administrator Alan Gilmore, Attorney 
& Treasurer J. Preston Owen, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, Public Works 
Director David Wortman, and City Clerk Susan O’Brien.   
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to recess to closed session at 
4:01 p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of considering the price for 
sale or lease of property (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(6)).   
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline. 
 
 Council reconvened at 4:34 p.m. 
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2008-1302, approving an option for the sale of 12.7 acres of real estate owned by the 
City of Mattoon located along the north side of Old State Road to Savannah Farms, L.P.   
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1302 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SIGNING OF AN OPTION FOR SALE OF 
REAL ESTATE OWNED BY THE MUNICIPALITY 

 
WHEREAS, On June 17, 2008 the City of Mattoon purchased 31.62 acres of land north of Old 
State Road and east of 9th Street for use in construction of a drainage ditch connecting 9th Street 
with the Kickapoo Creek; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has been working with Upchurch & Associates to design the drainage 
ditch; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City and Upchurch believe that parts of the property to the north and south of 



 

          

the drainage ditch are not needed for the drainage project and can be sold for development; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has been approached by Savannah Farms, L.P. to purchase 12.7 acres on 
the south side of the drainage ditch along Old State Road; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Savannah Farms, L.P. intends to use the property for construction of 32 single 
family homes; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the City will use the proceeds from this sale to finance the construction of the flood 
reduction project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that this project is beneficial to the citizens of Mattoon 
and it is necessary to provide an opportunity for the City to grow and provide affordable housing 
to the Community.    
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance 
 
Section 2.  The City Council hereby finds that the parcel of land described in the attached Option 
is surplus property and no longer needed by the municipality.  
 
Section 3.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute the Option attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A.”  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Hall, seconded by Commissioner Schilling, adopted this 14th 
day of November, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Ervin,  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 14th day of  November, 2008. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



 

          

 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on November 14, 2008. 
 
Attachment (1) - EXHIBIT “A”  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for questions or comments.  No questions or comments.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adjourn at 4:35 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 
         /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
         City Clerk  

 
 

November 18, 2008 (Regular) 
 The regular meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers at City Hall 
on November 18, 2008 at 7:03 p.m. after the 6:30 p.m. work study caucus session with Mayor 
David Cline and Commissioners Randy Ervin, Rick Hall, Joe McKenzie, and David Schilling 
physically present.  Other City employees physically present were City Administrator Alan 
Gilmore, City Attorney J. Preston Owen, Public Works Director David Wortman, Police Chief 
David Griffith, Fire Chief Mike Chism, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, and 
City Clerk Susan O’Brien. 
 
 Administrator Gilmore reviewed the pending Council agenda items and opened the floor 
for further discussion.  Attorney & Treasurer Owen reviewed the Fire and Police Pension Fund 
requirements determined by the Illinois Department of Insurance for the 2008 Tax Levy; 
reviewed the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) estimate for the 2008 Tax Levy, 
salaries and unemployment expenditures, dismal economic outlook, assisted pension funding of 
replacement taxes, and possible elimination of the assisted pension funding of replacement taxes.  
Council and attendees discussed pensions, real estate taxes, and State legislative control over 
pension mandates.  Attorney & Treasurer Owen discussed possible timelines for bonding 
issuances.  Administrator Gilmore updated the Council on the Depot and IDOT’s 21-day bid 
period. 
 
 Mayor Cline presiding. 



 

          

 
 Mayor Cline led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: YEA 
Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Joe McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner David Schilling, YEA Mayor David Cline. 

 

 Also physically present were City personnel:  City Administrator Alan Gilmore, Attorney 
& Treasurer J. Preston Owen, Public Works Director David Wortman, Police Chief David 
Griffith, Fire Chief Mike Chism, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, and City 
Clerk Susan O’Brien. 

      

 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve the consent agenda 
consisting of minutes of the regular meeting November 4, 2008, special meetings November 7 & 
12, 2008; Fire department report for the month of October, 2008; bills and payroll for the first 
half of November, 2008. 
 

  Bills and payroll for the first half of November, 2008  

        

  General Fund      

Payroll         $      269,514.83  

Bills         $      125,691.23  

      Total   $      395,206.06  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         2,026.08  

Bills         $            850.92  

      Total   $         2,877.00  

  Festival Management     

Bills        $            543.87  

      Total  $            543.87  

  Insurance & Tort Judgment    

Bills         $                0.42  

      Total   $                0.42  

  Capital Project Fund     

Bills         $        22,392.75  

      Total   $        22,392.75  

  Water Fund     

Payroll         $        31,268.47  

Bills         $      323,410.35  

      Total   $      354,678.82  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        31,337.70  

Bills         $        33,306.58  

      Total   $        64,644.28  

  Cemetery Fund      

Payroll         $         4,193.62  



 

          

Bills         $            881.84  

      Total   $         5,075.46  

  Motor Fuel Tax Fund    

Bills         $         2,076.74  

      Total   $         2,076.74  

  Health Insurance      

Bills         $         6,427.28  

      Total   $         6,427.28  

 
 Mayor Cline called for comments with no response.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the following 
vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for public discussion.  There was no public discussion.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adopt Resolution 2008-
2759, accepting the termination of Animal Control Services to the City of Mattoon; accepting a 
new agreement with Coles County for animal control; and authorizing the Mayor to sign the new 
agreement.  
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2008-2759 
 

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING CURRENT ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 
PROVIDED BY COLES COUNTY, APPROVING THE NEW AGREEMENT, AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE  NEW AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, on May 6, 1986, County of Coles entered into an Agreement with the City of 
Mattoon to provide animal control services within city limits and the fees paid under that 
agreement have not changed since that date; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Coles County has elected to terminate that agreement effective May 1, 2009; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Coles County has offered the City of Mattoon a new Agreement increasing the 
amount of contribution for the cost of services provided by the County to $1.50 (presently $1.00) 
per capita per annually; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon utilizes the animal control services of the County and deems 
the service a benefit to the citizens and the continuation of the agreement in the best interest of 
the City of Mattoon. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS that the City of Mattoon agrees to the 
termination of the current agreement and authorizes the Mayor to sign the attached 



 

          

AGREEMENT – ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES on behalf of the City of Mattoon.   
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline, seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, adopted this 18th day of 
November 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names): Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall,  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names) None 
ABSENT (Names) None 
 
Approved this 18th day of November, 2008. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk   J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on November 19, 2008. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for questions or comments.  No questions or comments.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2008-1303, authorizing the Mayor to sign an outright grant agreement by and between 
the City of Mattoon and John R. Armstrong reimbursing up to $14,625.00 from Mid-town TIF 
revenues over a three-year term for the facade restorations to the exterior masonry surfaces of the 
eastern wall located at 1913 Western Avenue. 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008-1303  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND JOHN R. ARMSTRONG IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE MATTOON MID-TOWN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 
WHEREAS, John R. Armstrong (the “Grantee”), has submitted a proposal to the City of 



 

          

Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s 
Mattoon Mid-town Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, 
thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have engaged in negotiations related to a Grant 
Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Grant 
Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the preservation, 
development and redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Schilling, seconded by Commissioner Hall, adopted this 18th 
day of November, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 18th day of November, 2008. 
 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 



 

          

Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on November 19, 2008. 
 
Attachment (1) - EXHIBIT “A”  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for questions or comments.  No questions or comments.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
  Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2008-1304, authorizing the Mayor to sign an outright grant agreement by and between 
the City of Mattoon and Janice Moritz reimbursing up to $66,950.00 from Mid-town TIF 
revenues over a 10-year term for a new roof consisting of, but not limited to removing the 
existing roof, inspecting and replacing any deteriorated roof decking to the building located at 
1601 Broadway Avenue.  
 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008-1304  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND JANICE MORITZ IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE MATTOON MID-TOWN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 
WHEREAS, Janice Moritz (the “Grantee”), has submitted a proposal to the City of Mattoon, 
Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s Mattoon Mid-
town Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, thereafter, the 
Municipality and the Grantee have engaged in negotiations related to a Grant Agreement 
(including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Grant Agreement”) 
concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the preservation, development and 
redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 



 

          

inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Schilling, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 18th 
day of November, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Hall,  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 18th day of November, 2008. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on November 19, 2008. 
 
Attachment (1) - EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for questions or comments.  No questions or comments.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adjourn at 7:07 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Ervin, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, 
YEA Mayor Cline.  
          /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
          City Clerk 



 

          

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
 
 
BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE 





 

          

 BILLS & PAYROLL: 
 
 
BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE 

 
 



CITY OF MATTOON

11-28-08 PAYROLL

11-8-08/11-21-08

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,898.32

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 148.38

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,774.66

110 5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 489.65

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,134.71

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 44.36

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,240.27

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 203.92

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,810.07

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 929.65

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 70.56

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 12,355.11

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,086.45

110 5212-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 9,021.53

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 61,757.49

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 2,543.87

110 5213-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 55,266.67

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,132.89

110 5214-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,908.36

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,800.06

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 573.5

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,975.16

110 5227-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,766.38

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 78,657.77

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 3,053.62

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,951.29

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,212.86

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 99.17

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,753.63

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 19,043.72

110 5320-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 565.25

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 519.5

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,178.23

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,101.66

110 5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 814

110 5335-113 OVERTIME 49.08

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,976.46

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 1,307.03

110 5370-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 77

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,301.23

110 5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 138.9

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,293.48

110 5390-113 OVERTIME 17.87

110 5390-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 786.06

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,966.57

110 5511-113 OVERTIME 349.38

110 5511-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 170.27



CITY OF MATTOON

11-28-08 PAYROLL

11-8-08/11-21-08

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,780.43

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 459

110 5512-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 168.66

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 323,201.05

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,618.08

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,618.08

RESERVOIRS & WATER SOURCES 211 5351-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,953.54

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 9,053.03

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 2,369.53

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 4,103.43

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,614.67

211 5354-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 17

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 312.49

211 5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 2,935.20

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,669.18

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 100.76

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,975.50

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 126.21

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 34,230.54

SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,581.64

212 5342-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 17

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 82.26

212 5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 2,608.58

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,418.75

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 316.18

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,609.07

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,669.21

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 100.78

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,975.50

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 126.22

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 28,505.19

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,740.93

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 647.5

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 3,388.43

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 390,943.29



CITY OF MATTOON

11-28-08 PAYROLL

11-8-08/11-21-08

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 18 1,964.50 38,898.80

OVERTIME PAY 28 295.75 9,613.78

HOLIDAY PAY-REGULAR 54 2,995.72 75,186.99

SALARY PAY 39 11,491.22 252,026.56

VACATION PAY 20 379.5 8,701.77

SHIFT PAY 160 112

PEHP 437.5

COMP PAID 16 16 383.16

SICK PAY-AFSCME 3 49.5 1,057.60

SICK-FD UNION 4 76 1,475.21

VACATION PAY 1 24 500.62

SICK-NON UNION 3 50.5 1,485.00

HOLIDAY PAY-OT 3 24 849.7

SHIFT PAY 0 246 147.6

BURIAL PAY 1 1 67



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 110  CITY COUNCIL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218411       110 5110-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-4633             096183          43.03

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:          43.03

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1126               110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: RECORD ORDINANCE     096178          34.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1172               110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: RECORD ORDINANCE     096178          46.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1362               110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: RECORD ORDINANCE     096178          34.00

 

01-014800 EMPLOYEE DATA FORMS IN I-09-72285           110 5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: EMPLOYEE DATA CALEND 096195          33.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218418       110 5120-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             096183         229.38

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200811218379       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 11-11/17   000000          12.00

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200811258437       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 11-18/24 C 000000          24.00

 

01-024075 IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEAL I-200811178347       110 5120-801        VITAL RECORDS: OCTOBER 08 VR FEES   096118         422.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:         834.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001155 ALAN GILMORE           I-200811258427       110 5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 11-7/20       096203         143.73

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 130   CITY ADMINISTRATOR       TOTAL:         143.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20193944           110 5150-816        FARM EXPENSES: FARMS FOR RENT       096172          97.10

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20196342           110 5150-816        FARM EXPENSES: FARMS FOR RENT       096172          98.65

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218418       110 5150-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             096183          94.22

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         289.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1008               110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: RELEASE LIEN         096178          34.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1014               110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: RECORD LIENS         096178         204.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1296               110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: RECORD LIENS         096178          68.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-1420               110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: RELEASE LIEN         096178          34.00

 

01-022300 HOWARD'S TRASH         I-398643             110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: TRASH 517 PIATT      096206          20.00

01-022300 HOWARD'S TRASH         I-404513             110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: TRASH 421 PIATT      096206          25.00

 

01-044430 JOHN THOMAS            I-188723.081124      110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: MOWING               096238         132.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:         517.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 170  COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P03564680101       110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: STORAGE DEVICES      096239          51.82

 

01-028498 BRIAN JOHANPETER       I-200811258425       110 5170-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 9-26/11-12    096212         798.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:         849.82

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002180 BRANDON BRANSON        I-200811218397       110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REFUND REPORT        096168           2.00

 

01-002181 LANG'S AUTO BODY SPECI I-003347             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: REPAIR STANDARDS CAR 096215         100.00

 

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-203651             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE,CREAM,SUGAR   096171         100.57

 

01-007401 CNA SURETY             I-200811258426       110 5211-522        NOTARY FEES  : POLLUM NOTARY        096177          30.00

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2008-18095         110 5211-313        MEDICAL & SAF: BANDAGES,GAUZE,TAPE  096214          34.23

 

01-038400 PITNEY BOWES INC       I-5093316-NV08       110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE METER RENTAL 096225         140.00

 

01-047000 WEST PAYMENT CENTER    I-590751             110 5211-571        DUE & MEMBERS: ARREST LAW BULLETIN  096245         168.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:         574.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000613 IDENTI-KIT SOLUTIONS   I-97419              110 5212-579        MISC OTHER PU: SOFTWARE ANNUAL LEAS 096208         408.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-200811258428       110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DIGITAL CAMERA       096249         599.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:       1,007.98

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-72643              110 5222-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BACKUP PANEL FOR DIS 096164         532.00

 

01-009057 COMM REVOLVING FUND    I-T0914446           110 5222-537        I-WIN ACCESS : COMM SVCS 10/08      096181         780.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 222   COMMUNICATION SERVICES   TOTAL:       1,312.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-361                110 5223-326        FUEL         : FUEL 10/1-31 POLICE  096186       7,435.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:       7,435.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002182 SECURE TECHNICAL ENGIN I-1352               110 5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: TECH SUPPORT         096234         240.00

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-73329              110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : BATTERIES            096164         479.60

 



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 224  POLICE BUILDINGS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218396       110 5224-322        ELECTRICITY  : PISTOL RANGE         096180          45.63

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128237       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 S 17TH           000000          36.25

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128238       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1710 WABASH          000000         115.58

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:         917.06

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000117 FULLER-WENTE INC       I-3603               110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: INSTALL THERMOSTAT   096200         200.04

 

01-000554 SARAH BUSH             I-200811218410       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: ITLS                 096233         375.00

 

01-000603 BARRY PULLEN           I-200811218361       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: 11/15 MEALS          096226           6.50

 

01-000701 HME SERVICES INC       I-214141             110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SEAT BELT            096205          78.84

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811258422       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  096152          99.62

 

01-001332 ADAM WHALIN            I-200811218363       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 11/15          096246           6.50

 

01-001343 DOUG COLE              I-200811198357       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 11/15/08       096120           6.50

 

01-001406 MICHAEL UELEKE         I-200811198353       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 11/15/08       096127           6.50

 

01-001610 AMERICAN TEST CENTER   I-2083239            110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: ANNUAL SAFETY INSPEC 096162       1,275.00

 

01-001847 JASON WEISS            I-200811198352       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 11/15/08       096129           6.50

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218402       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: HWY 16 STA 2         096180         284.67

 

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200811218387       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR R-29          096188         380.05

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200811218394       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR C-20          096188       1,179.13

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200811218414       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIRS #210         096188         117.34

 

01-012970 DON BAKER'S PEST CONTR I-200811218382       110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: PEST CONTROL         096190          30.00

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-55450              110 5241-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             096197          10.18

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3291937            110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: STORAGE BAGS,CABLE T 096154          20.77

 

01-018042 GALLS INCORPORATED     I-5965057300013      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: TROUSERS             096201         662.35

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218412       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0942             096183         111.68

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218413       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0924             096183          47.88

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811258432       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0947             096183          40.72

 



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-201305             110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: DUST MOP,SOAP,FOIL,D 096216         328.70

 

01-036080 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SE I-69492SNV           110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BATTERY,FLOW TEST    096220          59.23

 

01-039423 QUARTERMASTER INC      I-P641610600012      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: TROUSERS             096228         128.94

01-039423 QUARTERMASTER INC      I-P641839100018      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SHIRTS               096228          49.97

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-19209              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : MIC,ANTENNA,BELT CLI 096230         287.50

 

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-43937              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR TRUCK         096231         150.64

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-06912              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: TAPE,PAPER           096235          11.46

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-56317              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      096235         139.98

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-58859              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: COFFEE,ENVELOPES     096235          10.98

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-60224              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: INK CARTRIDGES       096235          77.59

 

01-043712 MITCH STRADER          I-200811218362       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 11/15/08       096236           6.50

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04276              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BAGS                 096243           2.92

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-05021              110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: TRASH BAGS,BLEACH,DA 096243         165.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       6,365.58

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002800 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE    I-200811218406       110 5310-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: CHAMBER BUCKS        096173         275.00

 

01-011700 DELL MARKETING LP      I-XCX9MMMM4          110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RECHARGEABLE MOUSE   096187         124.78

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:         399.78

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001668 CALIFORNIA CONTRACTORS I-A90319             110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: WORK GLOVES          096170          98.63

 

01-001686 ALLIED MUNICIPAL SUPPL I-7532               110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : POST REFLECTORS,ARRO 096160         287.29

 

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-37933              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ICE                  096165          31.00

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16293             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: 99 CASE REPAIRS      096167          78.18

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16381             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR 1996 CASE     096167         556.93

 

01-014485 CHARLIE ELLIOTT        I-200811258438       110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REIMBURSE CDL        096194          50.00

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT75302         110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FASTENAL COMPANY     096198          63.13

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT75319         110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FASTENAL COMPANY     096198          43.82

 

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-5273MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : COLD  MIX            096207       1,055.60

 



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218407       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5663             096183          37.56

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218408       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5522             096183          77.61

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218409       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5171             096183         221.45

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128241       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 212 N 12TH           000000           7.03

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128242       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 N 12TH           000000          41.54

 

01-036010 MIKE MORRIS TOOL SALES I-112890             110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: RUBBERIZED SUPERKNIF 096219          10.64

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-47195              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PADLOCK              096224          25.00

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-51110              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEYS                 096224          24.25

 

01-040469 DURWIN SANDERS         I-28080              110 5320-432        REPAIR OF BUI: DURWIN SANDERS       096192       2,516.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-22830              110 5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      096126          15.29

 

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-200811218393       110 5320-432        REPAIR OF BUI: REPLACE GUARDRAIL    096158       2,680.80

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:       7,921.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811198358       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 208 N 19TH           096119          37.28

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811198359       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH & RICHMOND      096119          57.48

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218367       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : PIATT & RT 316       096179          11.20

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218368       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   096179          12.83

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218369       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : SUNRISE APTS         096179           6.96

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218370       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : OLD STATE VILLAGE    096179           6.96

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218371       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : LAKELAND INN ENTRANC 096179           6.70

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218372       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : 3020 LAKELAND        096179           5.46

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218373       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   096179          12.83

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218374       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : SOUTH 9TH            096179           6.70

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218389       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45              096179          48.87

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218390       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   096179          39.85

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218391       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : EAST RT 16           096180          69.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:         322.59

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811138322       110 5335-410        UTILITY SERVI: 420 LOGAN            000000          31.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:          31.67

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045603 WMCI,WWGO,WCBH         I-11839              110 5338-579        MISC OTHER PU: ADVERTISING          096247         300.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 338   REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSALTOTAL:         300.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 381  CUSTODIAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811258422       110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: 208 N 19TH           096152       1,395.59

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811198356       110 5381-534        PAGERS       : 402-2636             096121          12.80

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811198360       110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: 234-7376             096121          37.16

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-146817-01          110 5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ICE MELT             096216          83.65

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-200618             110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: TOWELS,CLEANERS      096216         240.53

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07885              110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,BULBS,HOOKS   096243          68.30

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:       1,838.03

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811138323       110 5383-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1701 WABASH          000000          24.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:          24.99

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-95646              110 5384-576        SECURITY SERV: SERVICE              096189          58.00

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-95672              110 5384-576        SECURITY SERV: SERVICE              096189          83.00

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-200619             110 5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CLEANERS,TOWELS      096216         122.24

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07885              110 5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TISSUE,BULBS,HOOKS   096243           2.94

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:         266.18

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-046000 NIEMANN FOODS INC      I-1016384            110 5421-330        FOOD         : COFFEE,TEA BAGS      096221          34.23

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 421   COUNCIL ON AGING         TOTAL:          34.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-72488              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: CHARGER REPAIR       096164          48.00

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200811218385       110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: LUMBER,BOLTS,CAULK,V 096213          41.46

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-19775              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIRS              096222         739.23

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-20072              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER REPAIRS        096222         707.64

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       1,536.33

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-024101 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200811198348       110 5512-803        SALES TAX REM: OCTOBER 08 SALES TAX 096125         237.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:         237.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 521  DEMARS CENTER

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128226       110 5521-410        UTILITY SERVI: 418 RICHMOND         000000          30.45

 

01-044325 TERMINIX               I-303004             110 5521-436        PEST CONTROL : PEST CONTROL         096237          55.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 521   DEMARS CENTER            TOTAL:          85.45

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         207.30

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200811218385       110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LUMBER,BOLTS,CAULK,V 096213          45.72

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128223       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 305 RICHMOND         000000          83.11

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128224       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 301 RICHMOND         000000          94.62

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128227       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          10.84

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128228       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY SHED      000000          64.04

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128229       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          63.20

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128230       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 307 RICHMOND         000000         252.18

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-20071              110 5541-440        RENTALS      : DIRT LEVELER RENTAL  096222         300.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:       1,121.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         120.00

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200811218385       110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LUMBER,BOLTS,CAULK,V 096213          11.96

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128285       110 5542-410        UTILITY SERVI: BASEBALL DIAMOND     000000         904.39

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:       1,036.35

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811218403       110 5544-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1200 CHAMPAIGN       096161          49.72

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 544   CUNNINGHAM PARK          TOTAL:          49.72

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811258421       110 5551-321        NATURAL GAS &: 312 N 10TH           096152          22.60

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         120.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811218383       110 5551-410        UTILITY SERVI: 801 SHELBY           000000       1,257.79

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07885              110 5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TISSUE,BULBS,HOOKS   096243          14.07

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   BOYS COMPLEX             TOTAL:       1,414.46

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 552  GIRLS COMPLEX

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811218404       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            096161          38.03

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811218405       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            096161          10.08

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         120.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128231       110 5552-410        UTILITY SERVI: 713 SHELBY           000000         204.59

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:         372.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200811258420       110 5553-321        NATURAL GAS &: 421 SHELBY           096152          34.42

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5553-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         120.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200811128225       110 5553-410        UTILITY SERVI: 421 SHELBY           000000         168.97

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-20071              110 5553-440        RENTALS      : DIRT LEVELER RENTAL  096222         300.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 553   JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX      TOTAL:         623.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3259279            110 5556-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE TO WINTER 096131         120.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 556   T-BALL COMPLEX           TOTAL:         120.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200811218385       110 5562-432        REPAIR OF BUI: LUMBER,BOLTS,CAULK,V 096213         397.36

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 562   WEST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:         397.36

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-006875 CLASSIC PRINTING       I-59451              110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : BOAT STICKERS        096176       1,241.53

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3271702            110 5563-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE,OIL,PUMP  096131         128.84

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:       1,370.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000218 GORDON APPRAISAL SERVI I-200811218375       110 5651-519        OTHER PROFESS: SE CORNER OF DEWITT  096204         150.00

 

01-002097 CONSOLIDATED SERVICES  I-08-3544-1          110 5651-519        OTHER PROFESS: 15TH & MOULTRIE SURV 096184         755.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 651   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT     TOTAL:         905.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:      40,699.64



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001235 ANGELIA D BURGETT      I-200811218378       122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MILEAGE 11/12        096169          17.61

 

01-006720 CITDO                  I-200811218376       122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: 12/10 CITDO MEETING  096174          20.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218377       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: WELCOME SIGN         096179          29.20

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20194089           122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ON LINE ADVERSITING  096172         125.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         191.81

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:         191.81



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 586  LIGHTWORKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-140618-02          123 5586-330        FOOD         : CANDY CANES          096216       2,041.20

 

01-038082 PELICAN SIGNS          I-3926               123 5586-540        ADVERTISING  : SIGNS                096223         997.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 586   LIGHTWORKS               TOTAL:       3,038.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:       3,038.70



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: 150  FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000210 MESIROW INSURANCE SERV I-625473             125 5150-523        PROPERTY & CA: AMBULANCE COVERAGE   096218         557.00

 

01-002800 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE    I-200811218416       125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: CHAMBER BUCKS        096173         100.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         657.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:         657.00



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 128  MIDTOWN TIF FUND

DEPARTMENT: 654  TIF GRANTS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002183 JOHN R ARMSTRONG       I-200811258424       128 5654-825        TIF GRANTS   : TIF GRANT            096157       4,875.00

          PROJ: 801-100           Mid-Town TIF Projects          TIF GRANTS

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 654   TIF GRANTS               TOTAL:       4,875.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 128   MIDTOWN TIF FUND         TOTAL:       4,875.00



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-004800 TOM BUSHUR CONCRETE CO I-200811258431       130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 14TH ST SIDEWALK WOR 096240      10,826.21

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:      10,826.21

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045400 UPCHURCH GROUP INC     I-10339              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : SS DRAINAGE          096242       7,087.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 328   STORM DRAINAGE           TOTAL:       7,087.67

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20194542           130 5719-817        GENERAL OBLIG: PUBLIC HEARING       096172          29.53

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20197916           130 5719-817        GENERAL OBLIG: NOTICE OF INTENT TO  096172         348.60

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 719          TOTAL:         378.13

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 130   CAPITAL PROJECT FUND     TOTAL:      18,292.01



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 154  MALL BUSINESS DISTRICT

DEPARTMENT: 719  ** INVALID DEPT **

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20194542           154 5719-817        BD ALTERNATE : PUBLIC HEARING       096172          19.69

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20197916           154 5719-817        BD ALTERNATE : NOTICE OF INTENT TO  096172         232.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 719   ** INVALID DEPT **       TOTAL:         252.43

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 154   MALL BUSINESS DISTRICT   TOTAL:         252.43



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 352  RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-010000 CRAWFORD MURPHY & TILL I-78837              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: L PARADISE RESTORATI 096185          40.00

01-010000 CRAWFORD MURPHY & TILL I-78845              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: L PARADISE REHAB 9/2 096185       1,190.00

          PROJ: 166-501           LP Pump St Renov               Engineering - Design

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 352   RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS  TOTAL:       1,230.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001414 GENERAL CHEMICAL PERFO I-90185217           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            096202       3,095.19

 

01-001824 BEELMAN LOGISTICS LLC  I-109415             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 096166         775.67

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218365       211 5353-322        ELECTRICITY  : WATER PURIFICATION P 096179       4,082.83

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23832001           211 5353-460        OTHER PROPERT: L PARADISE PUMP STA  096182          75.00

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-95723              211 5353-379        OTHER WATER M: SWITCHES             096189          63.60

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3269933            211 5353-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: PLIERS,SAW,ROPE      096130          69.40

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3272669            211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,ROPE          096130          22.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3282202            211 5353-312        CLEANING SUPP: ICE SCRAPER,ICE BAG  096130           7.04

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3286737            211 5353-313        MEDICAL & SAF: COVERALLS,BOOTS      096130          58.23

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3287617            211 5353-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: WET WIPES,HAMMER,PLI 096130          34.43

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-527456             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: BUSHING,TAPE,AIR HOS 096217          36.49

 

01-040465 SAL CHEMICAL           I-86564              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            096232       5,542.40

 

01-045155 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE  I-8Y610458           211 5353-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             096128          14.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:      13,878.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T63342             211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BULBS                096167          27.68

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16293             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: 99 CASE REPAIRS      096167          78.18

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16381             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR 1996 CASE     096167         556.93

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218366       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: SBLHC PUMP STA       096179         110.69

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-00         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : METER COUPLING,CURB  096210       1,659.25

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-00         211 5354-375        LEAK REPAIR M: METER COUPLING,CURB  096210       3,246.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-00         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: METER COUPLING,CURB  096210         709.16

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-00         211 5354-371        WATER PIPE   : METER COUPLING,CURB  096210       1,234.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-01         211 5354-375        LEAK REPAIR M: CURB VALVE           096210         719.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1016771-02         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : COUPLING,CURB VALVE  096210         342.91

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1017255-00         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: HYD LUBE             096210          36.72

 



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-045400 UPCHURCH GROUP INC     I-10302              211 5354-730        IMPROVEMENTS : FAMILY FARMERS MEATS 096242      11,690.00

01-045400 UPCHURCH GROUP INC     I-10303              211 5354-730        IMPROVEMENTS : RT 45 WATERMAIN      096242       6,300.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:      26,710.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200811258435       211 5355-531        POSTAGE      : WATER BILL POSTAGE   096241       1,554.00

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200811258436       211 5355-531        POSTAGE      : FIRST CLASS PRESORT  096241          90.00

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07735              211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: BLINDS               096243          15.94

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:       1,659.94

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001908 ILMA MEMBERSHIP RENEWA I-200811258430       211 5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: 2009 MEMBERSHIP      096209          50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:          50.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-017403 FIRST MID-IL BANK & TR I-200811258423       211 5714-817        2003 WATERWOR: 2003 WATERWORKS BOND 096155     522,702.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 714   DEBT SERVICE             TOTAL:     522,702.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:     566,231.21



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200811218415       212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: HOSE                 096159           1.43

 

01-001887 BETH HELDEBRANDT       I-200811198355       212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : EASEMENT TO REMOVE S 096124         300.00

 

01-002179 JOSEPH CRITES          I-200811198354       212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : EASEMENT TO REMOVE S 096122       3,000.00

 

01-002956 BASHAM'S REPAIR SERVIC I-200811218380       212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIRS              096163         305.21

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T63344             212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BULBS                096167          17.96

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16293             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: 99 CASE REPAIRS      096167          78.18

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X16381             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR 1996 CASE     096167         556.94

 

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-402854             212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : SANITARY SEWER REPLA 096175       5,528.01

          PROJ: 159-501           35th Sanit Sewer Replc         ENGINEERING-DESIGN

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-200811148346       212 5342-740        MACHINERY & E: CHASSIS              096102      59,726.88

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20197700           212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : BIDS                 096172         118.06

 

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-43938              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: CAP ASSEMBLY         096231           8.62

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:      69,641.29

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001668 CALIFORNIA CONTRACTORS I-18024              212 5343-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SORBENT PADS,DUCT TA 096170         237.68

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218398       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: SBLHC LIFT STA       096180         187.64

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218399       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: GOLDEN VALLEY LIFT S 096180         116.02

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218400       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: LLC LIFT STA         096180          90.12

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200811218401       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: BUXTON LIFT STA      096180          58.32

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3265738            212 5343-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: TOW STRAP,TOGGLE BOL 096123          20.92

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-84705              212 5343-439        OTHER REPAIR : EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   096199         120.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:         830.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000736 PURITY CHEMICALS, INC  I-INV08203           212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            096227         350.00

 

01-001042 EAGLE CHEMICAL & SUPPL I-10394              212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FOAM ANTIFATIGUE MAT 096193         227.95

 

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637176822         212 5344-312        CLEANING SUPP: SPONGE,BUG & TAR REM 096153          10.17

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637184421         212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : PUTTY,PAINT BRUSH,CL 096153          57.42

 

01-001606 INDUSTRIAL PROCESS EQU I-3000929-01         212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : BALDOR 2 SPEED MOTOR 096211       1,747.16

 



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-402826             212 5344-511        PLANNING & DE: CSO LONG TERM CONTRO 096175         285.20

 

01-014119 DURKIN EQUIPMENT CO    I-S00004622          212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : SERVICE INSTRUMENTAT 096191         685.00

01-014119 DURKIN EQUIPMENT CO    I-S00004623          212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: PULSA ULTRA 3 METER  096191       1,030.00

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              C-3280823            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: RETURNS              096123          69.99-

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3266441            212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : LIGHT BULBS          096123          14.94

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3269804            212 5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS: TURN SIGNAL          096123          13.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3271755            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: STEEL RINGS          096123           2.48

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3276148            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: LIGHT BULBS,DISH SOA 096123         144.45

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3280825            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: LIGHT BULBS,WAX,POLI 096123          38.55

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3283489            212 5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS: QUICK LINKS,STEEL RI 096123          50.16

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3287518            212 5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS: WIRE BRUSH,TOWELS,BR 096123          77.34

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3288125            212 5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FUSE,CONNECTORS,PANE 096123          14.56

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811198349       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6828             096121          59.24

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811198350       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0939             096121          88.07

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811198351       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2737             096121          37.77

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-527311             212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : COUPLING,CAM & GROOV 096217          11.77

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-527436             212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : PRIMER,PVC GLUE      096217          81.02

 

01-039211 ERC/COLES COUNTY LANDF I-001912             212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE DISPOSAL      096196         280.00

 

01-040253 RENTAL CENTER USA      I-316064             212 5344-440        RENTALS      : RENT PUMP            096229         140.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-55638              212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      096248         147.94

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-59158              212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      096248          49.89

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-06822              212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : BULBS                096156          47.28

 

01-046615 WATTS COPY SYSTEMS     I-36600              212 5344-814        COPY MACHINE : COPIER 11/8-12/7     096244          77.11

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:       5,699.46

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200811218417       212 5345-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5483             096183         239.16

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200811258436       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : FIRST CLASS PRESORT  096241          90.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         329.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20202129           212 5346-540        ADVERTISING  : SEWER NOTICE         096172          76.52

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 346   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:          76.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:      76,577.13

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     710,814.93



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2008-2009 110-5110-532        TELEPHONE                          43.03         600         297.81

          110-5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    33.00       5,000       3,952.87

          110-5120-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        114.00       8,000       4,014.10

          110-5120-532        TELEPHONE                         229.38       2,800       1,249.27

          110-5120-801        VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN        422.00       7,500       4,132.00

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R         36.00       1,000         489.25

          110-5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 143.73       2,500         400.90-  Y

          110-5150-532        TELEPHONE                          94.22       1,000         321.19

          110-5150-816        FARM EXPENSES                     195.75       2,000       1,804.25

          110-5160-579        OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES          517.00      11,000       2,309.96

          110-5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  51.82       2,000         968.23

          110-5170-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 798.00       6,000       3,096.97

          110-5211-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          34.23         500         465.77

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              2.00       2,000       1,095.53

          110-5211-522        NOTARY FEES                        30.00         500         320.02

          110-5211-531        POSTAGE                           140.00       2,500         596.73

          110-5211-571        DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 168.00       1,000         339.50

          110-5211-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        200.57       5,000       3,454.61

          110-5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            599.98       4,000       2,437.34

          110-5212-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        408.00         750          23.70-  Y

          110-5222-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 532.00       2,000       1,159.71

          110-5222-537        I-WIN ACCESS CHARGE               780.00       8,300       2,928.00

          110-5223-326        FUEL                            7,435.93      70,000      22,350.65

          110-5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 240.00       1,000         634.93

          110-5224-322        ELECTRICITY                        45.63       1,500       1,087.25

          110-5224-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  151.83       2,300       1,426.29

          110-5224-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS        479.60       5,000      11,731.23-  Y

          110-5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   240.01       2,500       1,659.56

          110-5241-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 494.10       4,300       1,655.57

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               841.26      15,000      11,682.64

          110-5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      78.84       6,000       3,716.56

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             23.69       7,500       6,216.88

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            384.29      15,000       9,478.90

          110-5241-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,334.23       5,000         895.37

          110-5241-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              1,827.16      21,000       6,843.50

          110-5241-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         230.04       5,000       1,297.45

          110-5241-531        POSTAGE                            10.18         300          71.46

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         200.28       6,200       2,802.72

          110-5241-535        RADIOS                            287.50      10,000       8,764.65

          110-5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 414.00      20,000      12,101.35

          110-5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   124.78       2,000       1,723.93

          110-5310-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 275.00       1,000         670.00

          110-5320-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    15.29       1,000         834.39

          110-5320-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          98.63       2,000       1,423.19

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT                10.64       3,500       2,063.25

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     106.95      15,000       6,520.87

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             80.25      15,000      13,226.69



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5320-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      1,342.89      40,000       9,255.36

          110-5320-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   48.57       1,000         638.88

          110-5320-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             5,196.80       5,000       1,341.66-  Y

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               635.11      20,000       8,284.48

          110-5320-532        TELEPHONE                         336.62       5,000       1,603.20

          110-5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  50.00       2,000       1,843.50

          110-5326-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         94.76     170,000      99,783.88

          110-5326-322        ELECTRIC                          227.83       5,000       3,188.45

          110-5335-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   31.67         500         317.61

          110-5338-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        300.00      14,000         526.33

          110-5381-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 308.83       2,700         320.94

          110-5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             83.65       1,000         864.00

          110-5381-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,395.59      20,000       9,763.48-  Y

          110-5381-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN          37.16       2,600         902.74

          110-5381-534        PAGERS                             12.80         150          60.40

          110-5383-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   24.99         500         319.89

          110-5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            125.18       1,500         577.03

          110-5384-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 141.00           0         141.00-  Y

          110-5421-330        FOOD                               34.23       4,500       4,465.77

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  41.46       8,000       2,376.20

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,494.87       6,000       1,274.75-  Y

          110-5512-803        SALES TAX REMITTANCE              237.00       3,500         486.00

          110-5521-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   30.45       1,000         688.23

          110-5521-436        PEST CONTROL SERVICES              55.00         300         145.00

          110-5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            253.02       5,000       1,585.95-  Y

          110-5541-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  567.99      12,000       7,572.75

          110-5541-440        RENTALS                           300.00       1,500         517.50

          110-5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            131.96       2,500       3,194.27-  Y

          110-5542-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  904.39       3,000         149.10

          110-5544-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         49.72         500         256.09

          110-5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            134.07       2,000       1,495.38

          110-5551-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         22.60       5,300       2,846.08

          110-5551-410        UTILITY SERVICES                1,257.79       1,500       5,377.02-  Y

          110-5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            120.00       2,500       1,561.04

          110-5552-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         48.11       4,000         832.54

          110-5552-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  204.59       5,000       2,736.75

          110-5553-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            120.00       2,500       2,399.73-  Y

          110-5553-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         34.42       2,500         886.65

          110-5553-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  168.97       5,000       1,778.90

          110-5553-440        RENTALS                           300.00       1,500       1,200.00

          110-5556-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            120.00       2,000       1,606.87

          110-5562-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               397.36       2,500       2,092.76

          110-5563-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      1,241.53      25,000       3,961.28

          110-5563-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            128.84      10,000       7,752.20

          110-5651-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        905.00      87,000      73,598.89

          122-5653-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         29.20         850         200.91

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                       125.00      13,500       7,624.50

          122-5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  37.61       3,000       1,914.19



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          123-5586-330        FOOD                            2,041.20       2,000          41.20-  Y

          123-5586-540        ADVERTISING                       997.50       3,000       1,807.50

          125-5150-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        100.00      11,000      10,055.00

          125-5150-523        PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA        557.00     238,461     237,904.00

          128-5654-825        TIF GRANTS                      4,875.00      65,000       3,070.00-  Y

          130-5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     10,826.21     500,000     443,938.52

          130-5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      7,087.67   3,000,000   1,898,020.06

          130-5719-817        GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS          378.13           0         378.13-  Y

          154-5719-817        BD ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURC        252.43           0         252.43-  Y

          211-5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS OTHER THAN BUI      1,230.00     215,000     204,079.04

          211-5353-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                  30.02         800         541.54

          211-5353-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          58.23         500         427.77

          211-5353-314        CHEMICALS                       9,413.26     260,000     131,754.22

          211-5353-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 103.83       1,000         740.44

          211-5353-322        ELECTRICITY                     4,082.83      50,000      27,026.05

          211-5353-377        PLANT EQUIPMENT                    36.49      14,000      11,454.68

          211-5353-379        OTHER WATER MNTCE MATERIAL         63.60         500         390.18

          211-5353-460        OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SERV         75.00           0       1,414.13-  Y

          211-5353-531        POSTAGE                            14.99         600         246.42

          211-5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      27.68       3,000         596.39-  Y

          211-5354-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            110.69      55,000      33,784.92

          211-5354-371        WATER PIPE                      1,234.00       5,000       1,071.00

          211-5354-374        SERVICE LINE MATERIALS          2,002.16      12,000       3,545.16

          211-5354-375        LEAK REPAIR MATERIALS           3,965.00       6,500       2,247.00

          211-5354-379        OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA        745.88      10,000       7,396.13-  Y

          211-5354-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               635.11       5,000       5,464.88-  Y

          211-5354-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     17,990.00     187,140     168,626.13

          211-5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    15.94       6,000       2,992.17

          211-5355-531        POSTAGE                         1,644.00      14,000       5,460.90

          211-5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  50.00       3,000       2,496.00

          211-5714-817        2003 WATERWORKS REFUNDING     522,702.50     590,405           0.00

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      28.01       6,000       2,423.91-  Y

          212-5342-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               635.12       6,000       6,583.71-  Y

          212-5342-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                305.21       2,000       1,476.34

          212-5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      8,946.07     110,000      67,352.82

          212-5342-740        MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT          59,726.88     262,774     196,106.56

          212-5343-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 258.60       4,000       3,133.77

          212-5343-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI        452.10       6,000       2,557.82

          212-5343-439        OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC        120.00           0      10,941.32-  Y

          212-5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   197.83       2,000       1,043.92

          212-5344-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                  10.17       2,000       1,652.29

          212-5344-314        CHEMICALS                         350.00      10,000       5,420.26

          212-5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 115.49      35,000      20,666.70

          212-5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     156.04       1,500       1,041.58

          212-5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            227.95      19,500      14,963.74

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI      1,959.59      40,000      21,324.50

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,030.00      85,000      59,117.28

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI        685.00      12,500       1,016.28-  Y



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          212-5344-440        RENTALS                           140.00       2,000       1,217.72

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC        280.00      25,000         780.07-  Y

          212-5344-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        285.20       2,000       3,620.10-  Y

          212-5344-532        TELEPHONE                         185.08       6,000       2,860.57

          212-5344-814        COPY MACHINE                       77.11       1,000         612.31

          212-5345-531        POSTAGE                            90.00      13,000       5,734.62

          212-5345-532        TELEPHONE                         239.16       1,250         294.46

          212-5346-540        ADVERTISING                        76.52         200           1.26

                                TOTAL:                      710,814.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                         43.03

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                          834.38

                    110-130                 CITY ADMINISTRATOR                                  143.73

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                            289.97

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                      517.00

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                               849.82

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                               574.80

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                            1,007.98

                    110-222                 COMMUNICATION SERVICES                            1,312.00

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                               7,435.93

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                    917.06

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            6,365.58

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                  399.78

                    110-320                 STREETS                                           7,921.75

                    110-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                     322.59

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                                31.67

                    110-338                 REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSAL                           300.00

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                1,838.03

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                      24.99

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                      266.18

                    110-421                 COUNCIL ON AGING                                     34.23

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                               1,536.33

                    110-512                 LAKE ADMINISTRATION                                 237.00

                    110-521                 DEMARS CENTER                                        85.45

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                     1,121.01

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                       1,036.35

                    110-544                 CUNNINGHAM PARK                                      49.72

                    110-551                 BOYS COMPLEX                                      1,414.46

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                       372.70

                    110-553                 JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX                                 623.39



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-556                 T-BALL COMPLEX                                      120.00

                    110-562                 WEST CAMPGROUND                                     397.36

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                       1,370.37

                    110-651                 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                                905.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                     40,699.64

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                            191.81

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                      191.81

                    123-586                 LIGHTWORKS                                        3,038.70

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                                3,038.70

                    125-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                            657.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                             657.00

                    128-654                 TIF GRANTS                                        4,875.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    128  TOTAL              MIDTOWN TIF FUND                                  4,875.00

                    130-321                 STREETS                                          10,826.21

                    130-328                 STORM DRAINAGE                                    7,087.67

                    130-719                                             378.13

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    130  TOTAL              CAPITAL PROJECT FUND                             18,292.01

                    154-719                                             252.43

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    154  TOTAL              MALL BUSINESS DISTRICT                              252.43

                    211-352                 RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS                           1,230.00

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            13,878.25

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                               26,710.52

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                           1,659.94

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                             50.00

                    211-714                 DEBT SERVICE                                    522,702.50

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                      566,231.21

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                          69,641.29

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                                 830.70

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                         5,699.46

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             329.16

                    212-346                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                             76.52

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                       76,577.13

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     710,814.93



11/26/2008  9:08 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

 

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               159 35th Sanit Sewer Replc           501      ENGINEERING-DESIGN                       5,528.01

                                                                     ** PROJECT 159 TOTAL **          5,528.01

 

               166 LP Pump St Renov                 501      Engineering - Design                     1,190.00

                                                                     ** PROJECT 166 TOTAL **          1,190.00

 

               801 Mid-Town TIF Projects            100      TIF GRANTS                               4,875.00

                                                                     ** PROJECT 801 TOTAL **          4,875.00

 

  



11/26/2008  9:42 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 411  STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200811218364       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS AGGREGATE  096251         996.96

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200811218364       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS SPECIFIC   096251       9,045.52

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 411   STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE   TOTAL:      10,042.48

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200811218364       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: ADMIN FEES           096251       9,851.68

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       9,851.68

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-200811218384       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HEALTH CLAIMS 11/12  000000      38,931.48

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-200811258429       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HEALTH CLAIMS 11/19/ 000000      51,114.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      90,046.47

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-200811218384       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : HEALTH CLAIMS 11/12  000000      12,011.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      12,011.99

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001982 FORT DEARBORN LIFE INS I-200811258433       221 5417-212        LIFE INSURANC: DECEMBER 08 LIFE INS 096250       2,426.31

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 417   LIFE INSURANCE           TOTAL:       2,426.31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:     124,378.93

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     124,378.93



11/26/2008  9:42 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2008-2009 221-5411-211        STOP LOSS INSURANCE            10,042.48     137,500      65,450.33

          221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      9,851.68     162,500      82,111.12

          221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 90,046.47   1,150,000     249,748.02

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      12,011.99     464,500     225,512.22

          221-5417-212        LIFE INSURANCE                  2,426.31      32,500      15,226.23

                                TOTAL:                      124,378.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-411                 STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE                           10,042.48

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 9,851.68

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   90,046.47

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        12,011.99

                    221-417                 LIFE INSURANCE                                    2,426.31

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                           124,378.93

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     124,378.93

    NO ERRORS



11/26/2008  9:44 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-5278MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: HOT MIX              096252         590.85

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-5279MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: HOT MIX              096252         889.20

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:       1,480.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:       1,480.05

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       1,480.05



11/26/2008  9:44 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2008-2009 121-5321-353        BITUMINOUS PATCHING             1,480.05      40,400      36,149.20

                                TOTAL:                        1,480.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                           1,480.05

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                               1,480.05

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       1,480.05

    NO ERRORS



11/26/2008  9:27 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:     11/16/2008 THRU 11/30/2008

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200811258434       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,224.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       1,224.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200811218386       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,149.56

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200811258434       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       2,790.30

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       3,939.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       5,163.86

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       5,163.86



11/26/2008  9:27 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2008-2009 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      1,224.00     162,500      82,111.12

          221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   3,939.86      82,500      28,345.89

                                TOTAL:                        5,163.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 1,224.00

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     3,939.86

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             5,163.86

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       5,163.86

    NO ERRORS



11-19-2008  2:12 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 13356 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE: 11/19/2008

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-19400-11     MORGAN, MEAGAN L           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96132         7.77CR  100 33406          60.00CR

03-01200-07     BRAY, REBECCA A            11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96133        15.01CR  100 32443          60.00CR

04-15360-11     MOWERY, CHANDA J           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96134        17.90CR  100 32272          60.00CR

09-08200-02     PFORR, CHRISTOPHER         11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96135        18.74CR  100 26872          60.00CR

09-12350-06     COOMBES, DAVID J           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96136        30.15CR  100 31537          60.00CR

11-14400-08     ALLEN, TRAVIS W            11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96137        52.53CR  100 29733          60.00CR

14-00500-08     HARTMAN, YVONNE L          11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96138        46.51CR  100 32535          60.00CR

14-11700-05     HOYT, BENJAMIN L           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96139        52.99CR  100 33948          60.00CR

17-15510-10     DAVIDSON, HEATHER N        11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96140        33.32CR  100 33781          60.00CR

17-15600-14     MANINFIOR, DUSTIN O        11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96141        37.66CR  100 32054          60.00CR

21-13100-11     ROSE, NICI J               11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96142         4.18CR  100 32500          60.00CR

22-06000-07     VERDUCCI, JENNIFER C       11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96143        41.55CR  100 30628          60.00CR

22-09100-07     MCCLANE, KATIE N           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96144        33.69CR  100 33790          60.00CR

23-12210-16     MATTOX, JACKIE M           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96145        50.78CR  100 32830          60.00CR

24-06700-11     SVOBODA JR, ROBERT F       11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96146        53.84CR  100 31466          60.00CR

25-12300-03     FRITCHTNITCH, EMILY L      11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96147        35.23CR  100 25077          40.00CR

26-07830-02     PURDY, TRISHA R            11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96148        20.57CR  100 32617          60.00CR

29-15400-08     ENLOE SHAWNA, ANTONIO KILG 11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96149        10.96CR  100 32850          60.00CR

30-08000-10     KERSH, MARILYN G           11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96150        23.25CR  100 32578          60.00CR

39-06400-06     TRUMPER, MARK A            11/19/08 FINAL BILL     96151        55.51CR  100 27964          60.00CR



 

          

NEW BUSINESS: 
City of Mattoon 

Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 12/02/08    CDR NO: 2008-917           SUBJECT: Purchase of two (2) 
marked patrol vehicles for Mattoon 
Police Dept.  

 
SUBMITTAL DATE:     November 18, 2008 
 
SUBMITTED BY:           David Griffith, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED FOR            Alan L. Gilmore                  _____________________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA:     City Administrator                                             Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): 
 

EXPENDITURE                    AMOUNT                                CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $41,394.00     BUDGETED: $41,394.00        REQUIRED:   N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
 “I move that the City Council authorize the Chief of Police to purchase two 2008 Ford 
Crown Victoria Police Interceptors from Landmark Ford, Springfield, Illinois, at prices 
established under the State of Illinois joint purchase agreement.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
  Due to high mileage on two Mattoon Police Dept. patrol cars which will result in 
increasingly higher repair/maintenance expenses in the near future, Chief David Griffith 
recommends the purchase of two new 2008 Ford Crown Victoria Police Interceptors at this time.   
 
 A recent review of Mattoon Police Department’s patrol fleet by MPD Administrators, the 
City Administrator, and the City Treasurer resulted in a recommended vehicle replacement 
schedule; therefore, this purchase was anticipated and is included in the Police Department’s 
2008/2009 budget.      
 
 Landmark Ford at Springfield, IL, currently has two vehicles available for the amount of 
$20,697.00 per vehicle, being pricing established under the State of Illinois joint purchase 
agreement. 
  
   



 

          

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 12/2/08    CDR NO: 2008-918               
 
SUBJECT:    Purchase of two destratifiers for Lake Paradise 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:        11/19/08 
 
SUBMITTED BY:            David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  Quote from E. C. Baker & Sons 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
EXPENDITURE                    AMOUNT                                  CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $70,800   BUDGETED: $100,000   REQUIRED: None 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the purchase of two destratifiers for Lake Paradise 
from E. C. Baker and Sons, Inc. of Neoga, for $70,800.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 

 
Approving this CDR will allow the city to proceed with the purchase of two destratifiers for 
Lake Paradise. These will replace a single destratifier, also a Baker and Sons model, which was 
removed last year after fifteen years of service. We have worked with Crawford, Murphy and 
Tilly to determine the best replacement for the destratifier. After examining the different options 
we decided to stay with the Baker and Sons destratifier product but replace the single unit with 
two for better destratification. 
 
The purpose of a destratifier is to stir the water in the lake near the pump station intake so the 
lake does not stratify into layers of different temperature. This greatly reduces the effect of the 
lake “turning over” and thus reduces the possibility of taste and odor problems. 
 
The purchase is part of the Clean Lakes Project for Lake Paradise and will be reimbursed fifty 
percent. 
 
There is $100,000 in line item 211-5352-730 for this purchase. 



 

          

 



 

          

 



 

          

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 12/02/08  CDR NO: 2008-919 
 
SUBJECT:  Accepting Bid for Route 45/2417 Lake Land Blvd. Sanitary Sewer 

Project (Latch Project) 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  11/18//08 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore   _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):   
  

CITY EXPENDITURE  AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $  6,224.82 BUDGETED: $ 8,000 REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to authorize the mayor to sign a contract with  
Laster Custom Underground of Mattoon in the amount of $20,749.40  

for the Route 45/2417 Lake Land Blvd. Sanitary Sewer Project.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Approval of this CDR will move us forward with the construction of the sanitary sewer under 
Route 45 to serve the new restaurant at 2417 Lake Land Blvd and will make it possible to extend 
the sewer to serve the Glass Cutters. 
 
The project is being funded from a U.S. Rural Development Rural Business Enterprise Grant 
(RBEG). The RBEG grant funds 70% of the construction cost. The city will fund the remaining 
30% with economic development funds from the general fund. 

We received three bids for the project. 

Company Bid 
Laster Custom Underground $20,749.40 

Kieffer Bros Construction  $35,226.00 

Gardner Excavating $38,550.80 

 

 



 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008-1305 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH 

PERSONALCARE INSURANCE OF ILLINOIS FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF 
THE SELF-FUNDED MEDICAL AND PHARMACY BENEFIT PLAN AND DELTA 
DENTAL OF ILLINOIS FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE SELF-FUNDED 

DENTAL BENEFIT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Illinois employee and retiree group has demonstrated 
exceptional heath insurance experience, and 
 
WHEREAS, this group health insurance history has resulted in favorable renewal premium 
rates, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mattoon City Council to maintain and continue the 
relationship with the Personal Care Insurance of Illinois and Delta Dental plans currently offered 
through the Checkley Agency to its employees and retirees, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Mayor is authorized to sign a renewal agreement with PersonalCare Insurance of 
Illinois, Inc. for the administration of the self-funded medical and pharmacy benefit plan and the 
Delta Dental plan for employees and retirees of the municipality, copies of which are attached 
and incorporated by reference.  
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of    , 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this        day of     , 2008.  
 
 



 

          

 
      ____________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2008. 



 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1306 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A PORTION OF CIRCLE STREET LOCATED 
SOUTH OF CHARLESTON AVENUE AND NORTH OF WABASH AVENUE IN THE 

CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
 

WHEREAS, Ken Diepholz has heretofore presented a Petition to the City Clerk to vacate a 
portion of Circle Street, which Petition requests that said portion of Circle Street be vacated by 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of the plat of vacation is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
“A”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was recommended for approval at a rescheduled meeting of the 
Mattoon Planning Commission held December 1, 2008; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has determined 
that the public interest will be served by vacating said portion of Circle Street so as to relieve the 
public from further burden and responsibility of maintaining the public right-of-way. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.  That the portion of Circle Street to be vacated is legally described as follows:  
 

All that part of Circle Street as shown on plat of Noyes’ Addition date July 6, 
1857 and recorded in Plat Book One (1), Page Six (6) in the Recorder’s Office of 
Coles County lying south of Railroad Street (now Charleston Ave.) and North of 
Wabash Avenue as now located. 

 
Section 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after Ken Diepholz has tendered 
to the City of Mattoon an amount equivalent to the average of two appraisals of the fair market 
value of the vacated premises and payment of all costs associated with said vacation. 
 
Section 3. Ken Diepholz, having made the entire payment of the average appraised value and the 
costs associated with this vacation, shall be and is vested with title to the vacated portion of 
Circle Street as legally described above. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 5. Upon becoming effective, the City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of 
this ordinance with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
  



 

          

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by                , 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2008.  

 
      ________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien,    J. Preston Owen 
City Clerk     City Attorney 
 
 
Effective Date:  _______________________ 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2008.  
 









 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1307 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING PORTIONS OF EDGAR AVENUE LOCATED 
WEST OF 21ST STREET AND 22ND STREET AND NORTH OF EDGAR AVENUE IN 

THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
 

WHEREAS, A.J. Walker Construction Company has heretofore presented a Petition to the City 
Clerk to vacate portions of Edgar Avenue and 22nd Street, which Petition requests that said 
portion of Circle Street be vacated by the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of the plat of vacation is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
“A”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was recommended for approval at a rescheduled meeting of the 
Mattoon Planning Commission held December 1, 2008; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has determined 
that the public interest will be served by vacating said portions of Edgar Avenue and 22nd Street 
so as to relieve the public from further burden and responsibility of maintaining the public right-
of-way. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.  That the portions of Edgar Avenue to be vacated are legally described as follows:  
 

A part of South 4th Street (now Edgar Avenue) as shown on plat of Noyes’ 
Addition dated July 6, 1857 and recorded in Plat Book One (1), Page Six (6) in 
the Recorder’s Office of Coles County; beginning at the intersection of the west 
line of “B” Street (now 21st Street) and South 4th Street (now Edgar Avenue) as 
identified on said plat; thence south along said west line of “B” Street (now 21st 
Street) a distance of 80.00 feet to the south line of South 4th Street (now Edgar 
Ave.); thence west along said south line of South 4th Street (Now Edgar Avenue) 
to a point along a line that lies parallel and/or concentric with and 25 feet 
normally distant northeasterly from the centerline of Grantor’s Peoria District 
main track (now Canadian National Railroad); thence northwesterly along said 
parallel and/or concentric line to the east line of “C” Street (now 22nd Street); 
thence northerly along said east line a distance of 25 feet to the north line of South 
4th Street (now Edgar Avenue); thence east along said north line a distance of 300 
feet to the point of beginning. 
 
and, 
 
The north twenty-five (25) feet of South 4th Street (now Edgar Avenue) as shown 



 

          

on plat of Noyes’ Addition dated July 6, 1857 and recorded in Plat Book One (1), 
Page Six (6) in the Recorder’s Office of Coles County from the east line of “E” 
Street (now 24th Street) to the east line of “C” Street (now 22nd Street). 
 

Section 2.  That the portion of 22nd Street to be vacated is legally described as follows:  
 

A part of “C” Street (now 22nd Street) as shown on plat of Noyes’ Addition dated 
July 6, 1857 and recorded in Plat Book One (1), Page Six (6) in the Recorder’s 
Office of Coles County from the north line of South 4th Street (now Edgar 
Avenue) to 140 feet north of the said north line.   

 
Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after A.J. Walker Construction 
Company has tendered to the City of Mattoon an amount equivalent to the average of two 
appraisals of the fair market value of the vacated premises and payment of all costs associated 
with said vacation. 
 
Section 4. A.J. Walker Construction Company, having made the entire payment of the average 
appraised value and the costs associated with this vacation, shall be and is vested with title to the 
vacated portion of Circle Street as legally described above. 
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 6. Upon becoming effective, the City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of 
this ordinance with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by                , 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2008.  

 
      ________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien,    J. Preston Owen 
City Clerk     City Attorney 



 

          

 
 
Effective Date:  _______________________ 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2008.  
 











 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1308 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A PORTION OF CIRCLE STREET LOCATED 
SOUTH OF WABASH AVENUE AND NORTH OF LAFAYETTE AVENUE IN THE 

CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
 

WHEREAS, Bill G. Standerfer has heretofore presented a Petition to the City Clerk to vacate a 
portion of Circle Street, which Petition requests that said portion of Circle Street be vacated by 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of the plat of vacation is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
“A”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was recommended for approval at a rescheduled meeting of the 
Mattoon Planning Commission held December 1, 2008; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has determined 
that the public interest will be served by vacating said portion of Circle Street so as to relieve the 
public from further burden and responsibility of maintaining the public right-of-way. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.  That the portion of Circle Street to be vacated is legally described as follows:  
 

All that part of Circle Street as shown on plat of Noyes’ Addition date July 6, 
1857 and recorded in Plat Book One (1), Page Six (6) in the Recorder’s Office of 
Coles County lying south of Wabash Avenue and North of Lafayette Avenue as 
now located. 

 
Section 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after Bill G. Standerfer has 
tendered to the City of Mattoon an amount equivalent to the average of two appraisals of the fair 
market value of the vacated premises and payment of all costs associated with said vacation. 
 
Section 3. Bill G. Standerfer, having made the entire payment of the average appraised value and 
the costs associated with this vacation, shall be and is vested with title to the vacated portion of 
Circle Street as legally described above. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 5. Upon becoming effective, the City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of 
this ordinance with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
  



 

          

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by                , 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2008.  

 
      ________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien,    J. Preston Owen 
City Clerk     City Attorney 
 
 
Effective Date:  _______________________ 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2008.  
 
 









 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1309 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL ESTATE OWNED 

BY THE MUNICIPALITY TO STEVEN E. AND MARGARET I. LAWHORN 
 

WHEREAS, state statute (65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1) enables the corporate authorities to accept any 
contract proposal determined by them to be in the best interest of the municipality by a vote of 
two-thirds of the corporate authorities then holding office, but in no event at a price less than 
80% of the appraised value; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property being sold is described in the plat of survey, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes a finding that the real estate owned by the 
municipality that is the subject of this ordinance is no longer necessary or required for the use of 
the municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, Steven E. and Margaret I. Lawhorn have made an offer to purchase the property 
for $1,280.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Steven E. and Margaret I. Lawhorn own the adjacent property and theirs is the only 
property capable of providing access to property being sold and this land is necessary for the 
expansion of their business; and   
 
WHEREAS, Stan Gordon of Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. determined $375.00 was the fair 
market value of the real estate as of November 10, 2008, the fees for the survey are $755.00 and 
the fee for the appraisal is $150.00.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance 
 
Section 2. The city attorney is authorized to prepare closing documents and the mayor and city 
clerk are authorized to sign documents conveying a quit claim deed to the real estate described in 
Section 3 of this ordinance to Steven E. and Margaret I. Lawhorn, subject to a payment in the 
amount of $1,280.00. 
 
Section 3. The real estate to be conveyed pursuant to this ordinance is legally described as: 
 

A part of Lot Seven (7) in Block Forty-One (41) in the Original Town (now city) 
of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois being more particularly described as follows: 
 



 

          

Beginning at the northeast corner of Lot Seven (7) in Block Forty-One (41) in the 
Original Town (now city) of Mattoon, Coles County , Illinois; thence azimuth 270 
degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds (based on pervious local surveys) along the north 
line of said Lot Seven a distance of 38.88 feet; thence azimuth 180 degrees 11 
minutes 52 seconds parallel with the center line of 15th Street a distance of 25.58 
feet, thence azimuth 8 degrees 16 minutes 48 seconds a distance of 5.09 feet; 
thence 61 degrees 48 minutes 05 seconds a distance of 43.39 feet to the point of 
beginning, containing 408.54 square feet more or less. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2008.  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor    
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2008. 





Property Address:

Prepared For:

Prepared As Of:

Prepared By:

Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley 

Mattoon, IL 61938

City of Mattoon

208 North 19th Street

Mattoon, IL 61938

November 25, 2008

Stanley D. Gordon, CREA

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc.

1601 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10

Mattoon, IL 61938

Phone: 217-235-4789   Fax: 217-234-4666

stan@gordonappraisalsinc.com



APPRAISAL SUMMARY

Subject Address Unit #. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Legal Description . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

City . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

County . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Zip Code . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .SU
BJ

EC
T 

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

Census Tract . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Map Reference . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

PR
IC

E 
/ D

AT
E

Borrower . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Lender/Client . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .CL
IE

NT

Size (Square Feet) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Price per Square Foot $. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Location . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Age . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Condition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total Rooms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Bedrooms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N 

 O
F 

 IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
TS

Baths . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Appraiser . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Supervisory Appraiser . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

AP
PR

AI
SE

R(
S)

Final Estimate of Value $. . . . . . . . . . . . .

Date of Appraised Value . . . . . . . . . . . . .

VA
LU

E 
/ D

AT
E

Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley 

See Attached Survey

Mattoon

Coles

IL

61938

0003.00

17029

Sales Price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ N/A

Date of Sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . N/A

Client: City of Mattoon

City of Mattoon

N/A

N/A

Urban

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Stanley D. Gordon, CREA

375.00

November 25, 2008



LAND APPRAISAL REPORT File No.
Borrower Census Tract Map Reference
Property Address
City County State Zip Code
Legal Description
Sale Price $ Date of Sale Loan Term yrs. Property Rights Appraised Fee Leasehold De Minimus PUD
Actual Real Estate Taxes $ (yr.)    Loan charges to be paid by seller $ Other sales concessions
Lender/Client Address

ID
EN

TI
FI

CA
TI

ON

Occupant Appraiser Instructions to Appraiser

Good Avg. Fair PoorLocation Urban Suburban Rural. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Employment Stability . . . . . . . . . . . . .Built Up Over 75% 25% to 75% Under 25%. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Convenience to Employment . . . . . . . . .Growth Rate Fully Developed Rapid Steady Slow. . . . .
Convenience to Shopping . . . . . . . . . . .Property Values Increasing Stable Declining. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Convenience to SchoolsDemand/Supply Shortage In Balance Over Supply . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Adequacy of Public TransportationMarketing Time Under 3 Mos. 3-6 Mos. Over 6 Mos. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Recreational FacilitiesPresent Land Use % 1 Family % 2-4 Family % Apts. % Condo % Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . .

% Industrial % Vacant % Adequacy of Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Property Compatibility . . . . . . . . . . . . .Change in Present Land Use Not Likely Likely(*) Taking Place (*)
Protection from Detrimental Conditions(*) From To . .
Police and Fire ProtectionPredominant Occupancy Owner Tenant % Vacant . . . . . . . . . . .

NE
IG

H
BO

RH
OO

D

General Appearance of PropertiesSingle Family Price Range $ to $ Predominant Value $ . . . . .
Single Family Age yrs.  to yrs. Predominant Age yrs. Appeal to Market . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Comments including those factors, favorable or unfavorable, affecting marketability (e.g. public parks, schools, view, noise)

Dimensions = Sq. Ft. or Acres Corner Lot

Zoning Classification Present Improvements Do Do not conform to zoning regulations

Highest and Best Use Present Use Other (specify)

OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTSPublic Other (Describe) Topo
Electricity Street Access Public Private Size
Gas ShapeSurface
Water ViewMaintenance Public Private

SI
TE

San. Sewer DrainageStorm Sewer Curb/Gutter
Underground Elec. & Tel. Sidewalk Street Lights Is the property located in a HUD Identified Special Flood Hazard Area? Yes No

Comments (favorable or unfavorable including any apparent adverse easements, encroachments or other adverse conditions)

The undersigned has recited three recent sales of properties most similar and proximate to subject and has considered these in the market analysis. The description includes a dollar
adjustment, reflecting market reaction to those items of significant variation between the subject and comparable properties. If a significant item in the comparable property is superior
to, or more favorable than, the subject property, a minus (-) adjustment is made, thus reducing the indicated value of subject; if a significant item in the comparable is inferior to, or
less favorable than, the subject property, a plus (+) adjustment is made, thus increasing the indicated value of subject.

ITEM SUBJECT PROPERTY COMPARABLE NO. 1 COMPARABLE NO. 2 COMPARABLE NO. 3

Address
Proximity to Subject
Sales Price $ $ $ $
Price $ $ $ $
Data Source

+ (-) $ + (-) $ + (-) $Date of Sale and DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTIONAdjustment Adjustment Adjustment
Time Adjustment
Location
Site/View

M
AR

KE
T 

DA
TA

 A
NA

LY
SI

S

Sales or Financing
Concessions

Plus Minus Plus Minus Plus MinusNet Adj. (Total) $ $ $

Indicated Value
of Subject $ $ $

Comments on Market Data

Comments and Conditions of Appraisal

Final Reconciliation

RE
CO

NC
IL

IA
TI

ON

I ESTIMATE THE MARKET VALUE, AS DEFINED, OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AS OF to be $

Appraiser(s) Review Appraiser (if applicable)

Certification/License # Did Did Not Physically Inspect Property
Rev. 12/82 Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

GORDON APPRAISAL SERVICE, INC. - Limited Summary Report

08-401-LAND

Client: City of Mattoon 0003.00 17029
SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley 

Mattoon Coles IL 61938
See Attached Survey

N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

City of Mattoon 208 North 19th Street, Mattoon, IL 61938
Vacant Stanley D. Gordon, CREA Estimate Market Value

60 40
0

20,000 80,000 50,000
40 125 80

Mattoon is a community of approximately 18,500 
in population located 25 miles northeast of Effingham, IL and 45 miles south of Champaign, IL along US Route 45, IL Routes 16 & 121 and I-57. Mattoon
 has adequate schools of Grades K-12, shopping and employment. Lake Land Community College is located 5 miles south and Eastern Illinois University 10
miles east of Mattoon. Subject property is located on the northeast side of Mattoon, north of IL Route 16 & east of US Rt. 45. Secondary commercial area

25.58 x 38.85 x 43.39 408.54 SqFt

C4/General Commercial/Legal - non-conforming

Addition to a commercial building lot.

Asphalt

Mostly level
Much smaller than a standard lot
Triangular
Commercial

Adequate

No adverse easements and encroachments 
apparent. Utility easements are those typical to the neighborhood. Under current city ordinances and zoning, the structures if destroyed could not be rebuilt 
due to a smaller than standard lot. It is to be vacated by the city and sold to the adjoining owner to the east.

SE Cor. of the 600 Blk of N 15th St. & alley

Mattoon, IL 61938

N/A
/SqFt N/A

Inspection-County rec.

06-06
Average
408.54 SqFt/Commercial

Topography Mostly level
Frontage 28.58' frontage
Zoning C4/Non-conforming
Building Improvement None

Typical

1500 Richmond Avenue
Mattoon
0.23 Miles S

1,500
0.31

County records - Doc. #688857

03-06
Urban
4,900 sf -900
Level
50' frontage -210
C4/Non-conforming
None
Typical

-1100

390

(27th & Marion) Lot 4, Block 181,
Noyes Addn., Mattoon
1.18 Miles SW

510
0.14

County records - Doc. #689178

04-06
Urban
3,750 sf -700
Level
No frontage 285
R1/Non-conforming 200
None
Typical

-200

295

900 block of 19th Street
Mattoon
0.86 Miles S

500
0.21

County records - Doc. #681374

09-06
Urban
2,400 sf -400
Level
20' frontage 85
R1/Conforming 200
None
Typical

-100

385

Each sale is a partial lot like the subject site.

Scope of appraisal entails analysis of pertinent data and facts from buyers, sellers, realtors, appraisers, county record, 
multiple listing services, periodicals, appraisal organizations, cost services, etc.

Sale #1 is the most similar to the subject site due to the same zoning. This sale is given most weight. Sales #2 and #3 are also given 
some weight.

November 25, 2008 375.00

Stanley D. Gordon, CREA
553-000262



Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

Survey



USPAP COMPLIANCE ADDENDUM File No.

Borrower/Client Order #
Property Address
City County State Zip Code
Lender Client Reference #

Only those items checked below apply to this report

PURPOSE & FUNCTION AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL
The purpose of the appraisal is to provide an opinion of market value of the subject property as defined in this report, on behalf of the appraisal company facilitating the assignment
for the referenced client as the intended user of the report.  The only function of the appraisal is to assist the referenced client as the intended user of the report.  The only
function of the appraisal is to assist the client mentioned in this report in evaluating the subject property for lending purposes.  The use of this appraisal by anyone other than
the stated intended user, or for any other use than the stated intended user, is prohibited.
The purpose of the appraisal is to provide an opinion of market value of the subject property, as defined in this report, on behalf of the appraisal company facilitating the assignment
for the referenced client as the intended user of this report.  The only function of the appraisal is to assist the client mentioned in this report in evaluating the subject property Real
Estate Owned (REO) purposes.  The use of this appraisal by anyone other than the stated intended user, or for any other use than the stated intended use, is prohibited.
The purpose of this appraisal is to , on behalf of the appraisal company facilitating the assignment for the
referenced client as the intended user of this report.  The only function of the appraisal is to assist the client mentioned in this report in evaluating the subject property
for .  The use of this appraisal by anyone other than the stated intended user, or for any other use than the stated
intended use is prohibited.

TYPE OF APPRAISAL AND APPRAISAL REPORT

This is a Appraisal written in a Report format and the USPAP Departure Rule has not been invoked.

This is a Limited Appraisal written in a Report format and the USPAP Departure Rule has been invoked as disclosed in the body or addenda
of the report.  The client has agreed that a Limited Appraisal is sufficient for its purposes.

SCOPE (EXTENT) OF REPORT

The appraisal is based on the information gathered by the appraiser from public records, other identified sources, inspection of the subject property and neighborhood,
and selection of comparable sales, listings, and/or rentals within the subject market area. The original source of the comparables is shown in the Data Source section of the
market grid along with the source of confirmation, if available.  The original source is presented first.  The sources and data are considered reliable.  When conflicting information
was provided, the source deemed most reliable has been used.  Data believed to be unreliable was not included in the report nor used as a basis for the value conclusion.
The extent of analysis applied to this assignment may be further imparted within the report, the Appraiser's Certification below and/or any other Statement of Limiting Conditions
and Appraiser's Certification such as may be utilized within the Freddie Mac form 439 or Fannie Mae form 1004b (dated 6/93), when applicable.

MARKETING TIME AND EXPOSURE TIME FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

A reasonable marketing time for the subject property is day(s) utilizing market conditions pertinent
to the appraisal assignment.
A reasonable exposure time for the subject property is day(s).

APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:

- The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.
- The reported analysis, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal,

impartial and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.
- I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved, unless otherwise stated

within the report.
- I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this assignment.
- My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.
- My compensation for completing this assignment was not contingent upon the development or reporting of a predetermined value or

direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence
of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.

- My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice.

- I have or have not made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.  (if more than one person signs this
report, this certification must clearly specify which individuals did and which individuals did not make a personal inspection of the appraisal
property.)

- No one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person signing this certification. (If there are exceptions, the name of each
individual providing significant real property appraisal assistance must be stated.)

NOTE: In the case of any conflict with a client provided certification (i.e., Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac), this revised certification shall take precedence.

- Supervisory Appraiser's Certification: If a supervisory appraiser signed the appraisal report, he or she certifies and agrees that:  I directly supervise
the appraiser who prepared the appraisal report, have reviewed the appraisal report, agree with the statements and conclusions of the appraiser, agree to be bound by the
appraiser's certifications 2-7 and 9 on the second page of Freddie Mac Form 439 6-93/Fannie Mae Form 1004B 6-93, or the third page of form 2055, and am taking full
responsibility for the appraisal report.

APPRAISER'S AND SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S SIGNATURE
APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (only if required):

Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Date the Report was Signed: Date the Report was Signed:
State Certification #: State Certification #:
or State License #: or State License #:
State: State:
Expiration Date of Certification or License: Expiration Date of Certification or License:

Did inspect subject property Inspected Comparables

Interior & Exterior Interior and Exterior

Exterior Only Exterior Only

USPAP Compliance Addendum 4/99 Form reproduced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

08-401-LAND

City of Mattoon

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley 

Mattoon Coles IL 61938

City of Mattoon CITY OF MATTOON

estimate the market value

vacating and selling to an adjoining owner

Summary

90-180

90-180

Stanley D. Gordon, CREA
November 26, 2008

553-000262

IL
09-30-09



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPH ADDENDUM
Borrower/Client
Address Unit No.
City County State Zip Code
Lender/Client

Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

Client: City of Mattoon

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley N/A

Mattoon Coles IL 61938

City of Mattoon

Site View

Site View

Street View - north along 15th Street



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPH ADDENDUM
Borrower/Client
Address Unit No.
City County State Zip Code
Lender/Client

Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

Client: City of Mattoon

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley N/A

Mattoon Coles IL 61938

City of Mattoon

Street View - south along 15th Street



LOCATION MAP
Borrower/Client
Address Unit No.
City County State Zip Code
Lender/Client

Form produced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

City of Mattoon

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley N/A

Mattoon Coles IL 61938

City of Mattoon



File No.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price
is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing
of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) both parties are well
informed or well advised, and each acting in what he considers his own best interest; (3) a reasonable time is allowed for
exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative
financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associated with the sale.

*Adjustments to the comparables must be made for special or creative financing or sales concessions. No adjustments are
necessary for those costs which are normally paid by sellers as a result of tradition or law in a market area; these costs are
readily identifiable since the seller pays these costs in virtually all sales transactions. Special or creative financing adjustments
can be made to the comparable property by comparisons to financing terms offered by a third party institutional lender that is not
already involved in the property or transaction. Any adjustment should not be calculated on a mechanical dollar for dollar cost
of the financing or concession, but the dollar amount of any adjustment should approximate the market's reaction to the financing
or concessions based on the appraiser's judgment.

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION

CONTINGENT AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: The appraiser's certification that appears in the appraisal report is subject to
the following conditions:

1. The appraiser will not be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect either the property being appraised or the title
to it. The appraiser assumes that the title is good and marketable and, therefore, will not render any opinions about the title.
The property is appraised on the basis of it being under responsible ownership.

2. The appraiser has provided a sketch in the appraisal report to show approximate dimensions of the improvements and the
sketch is included only to assist the reader of the report in visualizing the property and understanding the appraiser's determination
of its size.

3. The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (or
other data sources) and has noted in the appraisal report whether the subject site is located in an identified Special Flood Hazard
Area. Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or implied, regarding this determination.

4. The appraiser will not give testimony or appear in court because he or she made an appraisal of the property in question,
unless specific arrangements to do so have been made beforehand.

5. The appraiser has estimated the value of the land in the cost approach at its highest and best use and the improvements
at their contributory value. These separate valuations of the land and improvements must not be used in conjunction with any
other appraisal and are invalid if they are so used.

6. The appraiser has noted in the appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, needed repairs, depreciation, the presence of
hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or she became aware
of during the normal research involved in performing the appraisal. Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, the appraiser
has no knowledge of any hidden or unapparent conditions of the property or adverse environmental conditions (including the
presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) that would make the property more or less valuable, and has assumed
that there are no such conditions and makes no guarantees or warranties, express or implied, regarding the condition of the
property. The appraiser will not be responsible for any such conditions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might
be required to discover whether such conditions exist. Because the appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental hazards,
the appraisal report must not be considered as an environmental assessment of the property.

7. The appraiser obtained the information, estimates, and opinions that were expressed in the appraisal report from sources that
he or she considers to be reliable and believes them to be true and correct. The appraiser does not assume responsibility for the
accuracy of such items that were furnished by other parties.

8. The appraiser will not disclose the contents of the appraisal report except as provided for in the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice.

9. The appraiser has based his or her appraisal report and valuation conclusion for an appraisal that is subject to satisfactory
completion, repairs, or alterations on the assumption that completion of the improvements will be performed in a workmanlike
manner.

10. The appraiser must provide his or her prior written consent before the lender/client specified in the appraisal report can
distribute the appraisal report (including conclusions about the property value, the appraiser's identity and professional
designations, and references to any professional appraisal organizations or the firm with which the appraiser is associated)
to anyone other than the borrower; the mortgagee or its successors and assigns; the mortgage insurer, consultants; professional
appraisal organizations; any state or federally approved financial institution; or any department, agency, or instrumentality of
the United States or any state or the District of Columbia; except that the lender/client may distribute the property description
section of the report only to data collection or reporting service(s) without having to obtain the appraiser's prior written consent.
The appraiser's written consent and approval must also be obtained before the appraisal can be conveyed by anyone to the
public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media.

Freddie Mac Form 439 (6/93, 10/98) Form reproduced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com - Page 1 of 2 Fannie Mae Form 1004B (6/93)

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

08-401-LAND



File No.

APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: The Appraiser certifies and agrees that:

1. I have researched the subject market area and have selected a minimum of three recent sales of properties most similar
and proximate to the subject property for consideration in the sales comparison analysis and have made a dollar adjustment when
appropriate to reflect the market reaction to those items of significant variation. If a significant item in a comparable property
is superior to, or more favorable than, the subject property, I have made a negative adjustment to reduce the adjusted sales price
of the comparable and, if a significant item in a comparable property is inferior to, or less favorable than the subject property, I
have made a positive adjustment to increase the adjusted sales price of the comparable.

2. I have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value in my development of the estimate of market value in
the appraisal report. I have not knowingly withheld any significant information from the appraisal report and I believe, to the best
of my knowledge, that all statements and information in the appraisal report are true and correct.

3. I stated, in the appraisal report, only my own personal, unbiased, and professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions,
which are subject only to the contingent and limiting conditions specified in this form.

4. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I have no present or prospective
personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. I did not base, either partially or completely, my
analysis and/or the estimate of market value in the appraisal report on the race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status,
or national origin of either the prospective owners or occupants of the subject property or of the present owners or occupants
of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property.

5. I have no present or contemplated future interest in the subject property, and neither my current or future employment
nor my compensation for performing this appraisal is contingent on the appraised value of the property.

6. I was not required to report a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client or any related party,
the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a specific result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event in order to receive
my compensation and/or employment for performing the appraisal. I did not base the appraisal report on a requested minimum
valuation, a specific valuation, or the need to approve a specific mortgage loan.

7. I performed this appraisal in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice that were adopted
and promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were in place as of the effective date of
this appraisal, with the exception of the departure provision of those Standards, which does not apply. I acknowledge that an
estimate of a reasonable time for exposure in the open market is a condition in the definition of market value and the estimate
I developed is consistent with the marketing time noted in the neighborhood section of this report, unless I have otherwise
stated in the reconciliation section.

8. I have personally inspected the interior and exterior areas of the subject property and the exterior of all properties listed as
comparables in the appraisal report. I further certify that I have noted any apparent or known adverse conditions in the subject
improvements, on the subject site, or on any site within the immediate vicinity of the subject property of which I am aware
and have made adjustments for these adverse conditions in my analysis of the property value to the extent that I had market
evidence to support them. I have also commented about the effect of the adverse conditions on the marketability of the subject
property.

9. I personally prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that were set forth in the appraisal report. If I relied on
significant professional assistance from any individual or individuals in the performance of the appraisal or the preparation of
the appraisal report, I have named such individual(s) and disclosed the specific tasks performed by them in the reconciliation
section of this appraisal report. I certify that any individual so named is qualified to perform the tasks. I have not authorized
anyone to make a change to any item in the report; therefore, if an unauthorized change is made to the appraisal report, I will take
no responsibility for it.

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: If a supervisory appraiser signed the appraisal report, he or she certifies and
agrees that: I directly supervise the appraiser who prepared the appraisal report, have reviewed the appraisal report, agree with
the statements and conclusions of the appraiser, agree to be bound by the appraiser's certifications numbered 4 through 7 above,
and am taking full responsibility for the appraisal and the appraisal report.

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED:

APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY APPRAISER (only if required):

Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Date Signed: Date Signed:
State Certification #: State Certification #:
or State License #: or State License #:
State: State:
Expiration Date of Certification or License: Expiration Date of Certification or License:

Did Did Not Inspect Property

Freddie Mac Form 439 (6/93, 10/98) Form reproduced by United Systems Software Company (800) 969-8727 www.unitedsystems.com - Page 2 of 2 Fannie Mae Form 1004B (6/93)

Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. Case No. CITY OF MATTOON     File No. 08-401-LAND

08-401-LAND

10. This report IS NOT a home inspection, the appraiser only performed a visual inspection of accessible areas and the appraisal cannot be relied
upon to disclose conditions and/or defects in the property. 
11. Simply because a borrower or third party may receive a copy of the appraisal, does not mean that the borrower or third party is an Intended User
as defined in the URAR form.

SE Corner of the 600 Block of North 15th Street and the public alley , Mattoon, IL 61938

Stanley D. Gordon, CREA
November 26, 2008

553-000262

IL
09-30-09



 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2008-2760 
 

RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR 
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES WITH THE COLES COUNTY REGIONAL 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon has selected the Coles County Regional Planning and 
Development Commission to provide certain Technical Assistance Services to the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has examined the proposed contract agreement a copy of 
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference and entitled "Technical Assistance 
Agreement” Between the City of Mattoon, Illinois and the Coles County Regional Planning and 
Development Commission," and finds said contract agreement to be acceptable. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Mattoon, Illinois that the City enter into and execute said Contract Agreement with the Coles 
County Regional Planning and Development Commission.  The Mayor is authorized to execute 
said Agreement. 
 
Upon motion by    , seconded by                , 
adopted this    day of    , 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):           
           
           
           

        
NAYS (Names):          
ABSENT (Names):         
      
Approved this     day of    , 2008.  
 

       
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on       , 2008. 



 

          

STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
CITY OF MATTOON) 
COUNTY OF COLES) 
 
 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the 
City of Mattoon, the County and State aforesaid, and as such Clerk I am the keeper of the 
records and files of the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Mattoon.  
 

I do further certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and correct document of the 
Resolution entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR 
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES WITH THE COLES COUNTY 

REGIONAL PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 
as adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Mattoon at its regular meeting held 
on December 2, 2008, all as it appears from the official records of said City in my care and 
custody. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed by official signature and corporate 
seal of said City of Mattoon, Illinois, the    day of    , 2008. 
 
 
 
             
       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL)  
 
 
 
 
 



 

          

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MATTOON IL 
AND THE COLES COUNTY REGIONAL 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT MADE THIS        day of                 , 2009 between the 
Coles County Regional Planning and Development Commission, hereinafter known as the 
"Commission" and the City of Mattoon, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called the "City." 
 
 WITNESSETH:  In consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1.  The Commission agrees to provide professional and technical services to the City 
from December 1, 2008 to November 30, 2009.  The professional and technical services shall 
be performed by the Commission under the direction of the City (See Attachment "A" for a 
description of these services).  Attachment A is hereby incorporated and made part of this 
Agreement. 
 
 2.  The City hereby agrees to enter into a contract agreement for actual services rendered 
for a maximum sum of $20,000 to be billed on a monthly basis.  The Commission shall bill the 
City for services rendered for the prior month.  Said payments shall be made by the City within 
30 days following each statement.  Statements will reflect expenses to-date and the amount 
remaining in the contract and will be provided to the City. 
 
 3.  All costs in the execution of this Agreement shall be borne by the funds allocated 
herein.  If the Commission does not perform any services for the City, no charge against the 

estimated sum shall be made. 

 
     4.  If the City wishes to continue contracting for assistance which goes beyond the 
estimated sum of this Agreement, said Agreement shall be amended as follows: 
 
At the request of the City, The Commission shall prepare an amendment to this Agreement 
outlining the estimated additional costs.  Upon mutual agreement, both parties will enter into an 
Agreement Amendment, which will be made and attached hereto. 
 
Other Provisions 
 
   1.  Termination:  This contract may be terminated by the City with or without cause.  
Under this event, the Commission shall be paid for all unpaid services rendered under this 
Agreement up to the date of this Agreement's termination, within thirty (30) days of the date of 
termination. 
 



 

          

   2.  Hold Harmless Agreement:  The City shall save the Commission harmless from any 
and all claims, demands, and actions based upon or arising out of any services performed by the 
Commission, their associates, and their employers under this Agreement, due to errors and 
omissions by the City.  The City agrees to have all Commission work reviewed by licensed 
professionals as applicable and appropriate.  
 

THIS AGREEMENT constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto, and no 
changes or additions to said Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed according to the laws of the State of 
Illinois. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their hands and seals this 
_______day of _____________, 2008. 
 
 
FOR THE CITY     FOR THE COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
            
MAYOR      CCRP&DC, Commission Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
            
CITY CLERK     CCRP&DC, Executive Director 
 
 
 
(SEAL)      (SEAL) 
     
         
 
           
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Public on nt server/2009 TA Contracts/Mattoon 09 TA Agr 

 



 

          

        ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

Coles County Regional Planning and Development Commission (CCRP&DC) Listing of 
Contractual Services 

 
 

(May include one, several, or all services listed below depending on the services authorized by 
the local government client.  All services to be billed as indicated in the agreement.) 
 
 
 *Planning (transportation, community, infrastructure, economic) 

*Zoning/Planning Map Preparation/Graphics 
 *Intergovernmental Relations Assistance (incl. access to state/fed funding agency 
   personnel & programs) 
 *Grant Application Assistance  
 *Grant Administration Assistance 
 *TIF District Technical Assistance and Support 

*Other Duties as assigned by City Council and/or City Administrator 
 
 



 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
  

RESOLUTION NO. 2008-2761 
 

RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
FOR REVOLVING LOAN FUND ADMINISTRATION & COORDINATION SERVICES 

WITH THE COLES COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon operates a State of Illinois capitalized Revolving Loan Fund, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Coles County Regional Planning and Development Commission has been 
deemed by the City Council as qualified to administer said Revolving Loan Fund, said 
Commission furnishing a proposed contract agreement for Revolving Loan Fund administration 
services to the City, and; 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has examined the proposed contract agreement, entitled 
"Contract Agreement for Administration and Coordination Services for State Capitalized 
Revolving Loan Fund," and finds the agreement to be acceptable. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois that the City enter into and execute this Contract Agreement 
for Administrative Services with the Coles County Regional Planning and Development 
Commission.  The Mayor is authorized to execute said AGREEMENT. 
 
Upon motion by    , seconded by    , adopted this  
  day of    , 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):           
           
           
           
           
NAYS (Names):          
ABSENT (Names):         
      
Approved this     day of    , 2008.  
 
 
             
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



 

          

 
 
             
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on       , 2008. 
 



 

          

STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
CITY OF MATTOON)                
COUNTY OF COLES) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the 
City of Mattoon, the County and State aforesaid, and as such Clerk I am the keeper of the 
records and files of the Mayor and City Council of the City. 
 
 I do further certify the attached foregoing is a true and correct document of the Resolution 
entitled: 
 

 RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
FOR REVOLVING LOAN FUND ADMINISTRATION & COORDINATION SERVICES 

WITH THE COLES COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION 

 
 
as adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the said City at its regular meeting held on 
December 2, 2008 and as approved by the Mayor of said City on the 2nd day of December, 
2008, as it appears from the official records of said City in my care and custody. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed by official signature and the corporate 
seal of said City of Mattoon, Illinois, the    day of    , 2008. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 



 

          

 
CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

FOR ADMINISTRATION AND COORDINATION SERVICES 
FOR STATE CAPITALIZED REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this   day of   , 2008 by and 
between the City of Mattoon, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the Coles 
County Regional Planning and Development Commission, Charleston, Illinois, (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Commission"), covers certain administrative and coordination services to be 
furnished in connection to a revolving loan capitalized by the State of Illinois. 
 
Description of Project 
 
The administration/coordination of City’s State of Illinois capitalized Revolving Loan Fund. 
 
WITNESSETH THAT, in consideration of these premises and the mutual covenants herein set 
forth, 
 
THE COMMISSION AGREES to perform the following duties for the City in consultation with 
the Mayor and City Council and their designated representatives:  
 
1. Fulfillment of Loan Conditions/Requirements 
 

The Commission will administer the City's revolving loan fund in accordance with 
applicable local, state, and federal provisions to assure the City's legal responsibilities with 
respect to said revolving loan fund.  The Commission will also undertake to prepare and 
submit all materials required to satisfy any conditions of the loan made from said revolving 
loan fund, including State-required Environmental Review Procedures (if required).   

 
2. Reporting 
 

The Commission will establish and maintain a revolving loan filing system and shall 
prepare and submit all necessary reports, forms, schedules, accounts, and all other 
documents required or requested by local, state, and federal governments as well as 
authorized auditing firms/personnel for program compliance purposes.  The Commission 
will render reports, either oral or written, at the request of the City concerning the 
Commission's activities and program progress to either the City or other groups. 

 



 

          

Day-to-Day Coordination of Activities 
 
The Commission shall at all times during this AGREEMENT provide the City and its 
representatives with day-to-day coordination of program activities and shall, as often as required, 
provide needed information to accomplish the intent of this AGREEMENT. 
 
THE CITY AGREES: 
 
Payment for Revolving Loan Fund Administration Services 
 
The estimated annual sum of this agreement is $2,100.00 to be billed on a monthly basis. The 
Commission shall bill the City for services rendered for the prior month.  Said payments shall be 
made by the City within 30 days following each statement.  Statements will reflect expenses to-
date and the amount remaining in the contract and will be provided to the City.  The City agrees 
to authorize payment for said services from local revolving loan funds or other local sources. 
 
Program Coordination 
 
The City pledges its support and assistance to the Commission in the day-to-day coordination of 
administration activities of the City under this AGREEMENT. 
 
Performance Period 

 
This contractual AGREEMENT shall be in effect from December 1, 2008 until November 30, 
2009. 
 
Additional Services 

 
Additional services not mentioned in this AGREEMENT shall be provided by the Commission 
upon request by the City, after a negotiated AGREEMENT addendum has been executed. 
 
Other Provisions 
 
1. Termination:  This contract may be terminated by the City with or without cause.  

Under this event, the Commission shall be paid for all unpaid services rendered under this 

Agreement up to the date of this Agreement's termination, within thirty (30) days of the 

date of termination. 

 
2. Commission Not Liable:  The City shall save the Commission harmless from any and all 

claims, demands, and actions based upon or arising out of any services performed by the 
Commission, their associates, and their employers under this AGREEMENT, due to errors 
and omissions by the City. 



 

          

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT between the parties hereto, and no 
changes or additions to said AGREEMENT shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the 
parties hereto.  This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and construed according to the laws of 
the State of Illinois. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their hands and seals this ____ day of  
  , 2008. 
 
 
FOR THE CITY:    FOR THE COMMISSION: 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Mayor       CCRP & DC Commission Chairman 
 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
City Clerk     CCRP & DC Executive Director 
 
 
(SEAL)     (SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public on nt server/2009 RLF Contracts/Mattoon 09 RLF Agr 

 
 



 

          

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2008 - 1310 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND HOOK-SUPR RX L.L.C.IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE MATTOON MID-TOWN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 
WHEREAS, HOOK-SUPR RX L.L.C. (the “Grantee”), has submitted a proposal to the City of 
Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s 
Mattoon Mid-town Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, 
thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have engaged in negotiations related to a Grant 
Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Grant 
Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the preservation, 
development and redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee has submitted plans and specifications for the redevelopment Block 
137 of the Original Town of Mattoon in order to construct a new 13,225 square foot CVS Store; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the design and size of this store will require the re-routing of conflicting 
communications infrastructure and municipal utilities currently located in the alley of Block 137 
of the Original Town of Mattoon; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this redevelopment will further revitalized the Municipality’s Mid-town TIF 
District by creating new jobs and bringing more diversity of goods and services to the Mid-town 
area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 



 

          

 
Upon motion by     , seconded by      , 
adopted this    day of    , 2008, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):           
           
           
NAYS (Names):          
ABSENT (Names):         
 
Approved this    day of    , 2008. 
 
 
             
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on       , 2008. 
 



  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Grant Agreement is made this ____ day of December, 2008, by and between the 

CITY OF MATTOON, Coles County, Illinois, a municipal corporation (hereinafter the 

“Grantor”), and HOOK-SUPR RX L.L.C. of One CVS Drive; Woonsocket, Rhode Island, 

02895, (hereinafter the “Grantee”), as follows: 

1. Grantor does grant unto Grantee an amount to be determined by the formula outlined in 

Paragraph 2 below, to be disbursed as hereinafter described, subject to the following terms and 

conditions: 

  

A. It is agreed and understood that this grant shall be for the sole purpose of the 

redevelopment Block 137 in the Original Town of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (more 

commonly known as the block that site west of 13th Street, east of 14th street, north of 

Charleston Avenue and south of Broadway Avenue).  The plans include the demolition of 

all existing structures located on this block, construction of a new Midas store on the east 

1/3 of the block and the construction of a new CVS store on the west 2/3 of the block. 

This redevelopment will cause the Grantee to spend monies to relocate the all the utilities 

currently located in the alleyway of Block 137.  This grant is specifically to offset those 

utility relocation costs and other eligible costs under the Illinois TIF Act. This grant is 

specifically contingent upon the undersigned first receiving initial design approval from 

the City.  Further, as additional consideration herein, the undersigned covenants that once 

completed, said City-approved demolition and redevelopment work shall remain the 

same and not be substantially changed without prior written consent of the City for 10 

years from the date of completion, which covenant shall survive the payment of the grant 

and remain obligatory unto the parties herein whether or not they retain control of the 

property or transfer the same to a third party within said 10 years.  Should the 

undersigned sell or convey all or a part of said property, it guarantees and promises unto 

the City of Mattoon that it shall include in the deed a restriction on redevelopment for 

said 10-year period.  Said prohibition upon a substantial alteration of said redevelopment 

does not prohibit the undersigned from periodic and regular maintenance of the same, 



 

 

which maintenance shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, cleaning, painting and 

material replacement if warranted.  The undersigned agrees to proceed with said 

redevelopment within 180 days of initial design approval from the City, and to proceed 

diligently to the completion of the same, but in no event to be completed in not less than 

24 months from the date hereof. During said construction, the City, at any time, can issue 

a written notice to the undersigned that it is in violation of the agreed upon design and 

specifications heretofore approved by the City. The undersigned will have thirty (30) 

days from receipt of written notice of noncompliance with design to correct the same to 

the City’s satisfaction or otherwise reach a mutually agreeable resolution of the same.  If 

correction or a mutual resolution is not completed within said thirty (30) day response 

time, then in that event, the City may consider this grant to be in default, to cease all 

future payments due hereunder, and shall rescind the grant. Though the City of Mattoon 

retains approval authority and oversight responsibility for the redevelopment program 

discussed herein, it is not responsible for the destruction or construction of the same nor 

for the payment of said work.  Accordingly, the Grantee hereby agrees to assume all 

responsibility for any damages or claims for damages as a result of any injuries or claims 

for injuries for said demolition and redevelopment construction, and, further, agrees to 

indemnify and hold the City of Mattoon free and harmless in association with any 

damages or claims for damages by the Grantee, or other third parties. 

 

B. It is agreed and understood that the grant shall be for the purpose of redeveloping 

Block 137 of the Original Town of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois with new Midas and 

CVS stores. 

 

C. It is agreed and understood that the City if giving this grant to offset the cost of 

relocating the utilities currently located in the alley of Block 137 of the Original town o 

Mattoon. Said grant proceeds shall be based upon the actual demolition/construction cost 

of work and the incremental property taxes received by the City.  

 

 



 

 

D. Grantee shall secure the necessary building permits from Grantor, and shall 

indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from any and all claims, damages, and injuries 

associated with or resulting from the redevelopment and improvement of said real estate. 

 

2. The Grant amount shall be a one (1) time payment equal to Twenty Five percent (25%) of 

the Incremental Equalized Assessed Value (IEAV) of all of Block 137 in the Original Town of 

Mattoon, Illinois for the first full assessment year of the property after completion of the 

redevelopment project.  The payment may be made at any time after the Coles County 

Supervisor of Assessments certifies the Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) for the first full 

assessment year after the completion of the redevelopment project. The Grant shall be paid from 

the City’s Mid-town TIF District to assist with the relocation the aforementioned utility conflicts.  

Grantee agrees that the EAV of the properties shall not be reduced below the EAV used in the 

computation of this payment for a period of five years from the date the payment is made.  

 

The Incremental Equalized Assessed Value (IEAV) shall be calculated by subtracting the amount 

of the Equalized Assessed Valuation of all properties in Block 137 of the Original Town of 

Mattoon as of the date of the signing of this agreement (which is $160,480) from the Equalized 

Assessed Value (EAV) for the first full assessment year after the completion of the 

redevelopment project. 

 

3. At any time after the signing of this agreement, Grantor shall, upon receiving a properly 

executed petition for vacation and the holding of the requisite public hearings, vacate the 

alleyway in Block 137 of the Original town of Mattoon and will transfer the same to Grantee in 

accordance with Grantor’s Code of Ordinances.  Said vacation shall be subject to all easements 

existing at the time of said vacation. 

 

4. Grantee does hereby guarantee and covenant that it will apply the grant money only for 

the uses intended as set forth herein pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

5. Grantor’s grant as made herein is made contingent upon Grantee performing all of the 

covenants and conditions by it to be performed.   



 

 

 

6. This is an outright grant and is not repayable to Grantor unless Grantee fails to perform 

one or more of the covenants and conditions herein by it to be performed, and in that event, 

Grantor shall send written notice of said breach to Grantee and afford it an opportunity to correct 

the same within 30 days. Should Grantee fail to correct the breach within 30 days of said written 

notice, then in that event, Grantor shall rescind the grant and shall be entitled to recover from 

Grantee any and all grant moneys heretofore delivered to Grantee, which grant money Grantee 

agrees to repay unto Grantor. 

 

7. This grant made herein is pursuant to a Council Decision Request approved by the City 

Council of the City of Mattoon meeting in regular session on November 4, 2008.  

 

8. Grantee covenants unto Grantor that it intends to retain ownership of the building for the 

operation of a commercial business or businesses and that it is not its intention to use the grant 

money herein to construct the building and then resell the same to a third party. To secure this 

covenant, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the building is sold to a third party, then there shall 

be a rebate of the grant based upon the following schedule: if sold within one year of the date of 

the payment as outlined in paragraph 2, there shall be a 75% rebate of the grant; if sold after one 

year from the date of the payment as outlined in paragraph 2 but within two years of the date of 

said payment, then there shall be a 50% rebate of the grant amount already paid; and if sold after 

two years from the date of the payment as outlined in paragraph 2 but within three years of the 

date of said payment, then there shall be a 25% rebate of the grant amount already paid..  

 

9.    Grantor reserves to itself the right to seek reimbursement for the amount expended under 

this grant from revenues of the Mattoon Mid-town Tax Increment Financing District.  

  
Executed at Mattoon, Illinois, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
HOOK-SUPR RX L.L.C., GRANTEE  CITY OF MATTOON, GRANTOR 
 
 
             

By:       David W. Cline, Mayor 



 

 

Its’      
 
       ATTEST: 
       _______________________________ 
       Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 
 

 




